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AULRITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

W have audited the annexed balance sheet of Emirates Globhal Islamic Bank Limited as at December 31, 200%, and
the related profit and loss acoount, statement of comprehensive income, cash fliow statement and statement of changes
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here-in-after refarred Lo as the 'financial statements’} for the year
then ended, in which are incoporated the unaudited certified retums from the branches except for ten branchaes which
have been audited by us and we state that we bave obtained all the information and explarations which, to the best of
our knowdedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the respansibility of the Bank's Board of Directors bo establish and maintain a systemn of intemal conbrol, and prepare
and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LIl of 19682), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 XLV of 1984). Qur
responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these slalements based on our audit.

We conducted qur audit in accordance with the Intemational Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
skaternents are free of any materal misstatement. An audit mcludes examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the
amourts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit akso indudes assessing the accounting policies and
significanl estimates made by management, as well as, svaluating the overalt presentaion of the financial statements.
Ve belisve thal our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opnicn and after due verfication. which in the case of
financing coverad more than sixdy percent of the total inancing of the bark, we report that;

{3} I cur opinion, proper books of account have been kept by Ihe Bank as required by the Companigs
Ordinance, 18984 XLV of 1984) and the relurns referred to above received from the branches have been
found adequate for the purposes of our audil;

{by In our opinion:

{iv the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
corformity with the Banking Companigs Ordinanca, 1962 (LW of 1962}, and the Companies Ordinance,
1984 KLVH of 1084), and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes as stated in note 2.1 to the fimancial
staterments, with which we concur,

(i} the expenditurs incurred duning the year was for the purpose of the Bank's busingss,; and

(i} the business conducted, invesimenis made and the expenditure incumed duning the year werg in accordance
with the objects of the Bark and the transactions of the Bank which have come o our nolice have besn within
the poweees of the Bank;

(=} I our opinion and o the best of our informabion and according to the explanations given to us the balance shieet,
profit and lass account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow staternent and statement of changes in
equity logether with tha notes forming part therecf conform with the approved accounting standands as applicable
in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LI of 1982}, and the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVI of 1984), in the manner 5o required and give a true and fair view of the state
of the Bank's affairs as at December 31, 2009 and its inoe balance of loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for
the year then ended; and '

{d] In our opinion Zzkat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance. 1280 X1l of 1980 was
deducted by the Bank 2nd deposited in the Central Zakat Fund estaklished under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw atiention lo note 38 to the financial stalements which more fully explains that the
bank has not met the minimum paid up capial requirermend {net of logses) of Rs § bilion as applicable o the bank for
the curenl year. The Bank has applied 1o the State Bank of Pahistan ta grant the bank an extension upto March 31,
2010 for meeting the afore-mentiched capital requiremenl.

gFartner Rashid A, Jafer
9, 2010
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EMIRATES GLOBAL ISLAMIC BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2(1%

MNote 2009 2008
Rupaas in ‘00D

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 1,337,892 909,378
Balances with other hanks 5 859 075 195,134
Due from financial institutions 7 1,600,000 320,000
Investiments B 3,358 T05 2,756,150
Financing 0 5,439 243 T.77T 482
Qperating fixed assats 10 1,741,736 1,618,029
Deferred tax assets - net 11 486 638 239,336
Other assets 12 Bai 157 2,720 858

18,762,450 16,537 387
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 14 262 601 148 403
Bue to financial institulions 15 20,000 Fi5.000
Deposits and other accounls 16 15,081 242 10,882 602
Sub-urdinated lnans - -
Liabilities against assets subject 1o finance lease 17 42 457 ¥ 488
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Qther liabifities 18 862 444 625 057

18,268 B34 12 468 548
HET ASSETS 3493616 4,068 838

REFRESENTED BY

Share capital 19 4 500,000 4 500,000
Share subscription maney 19.5 657 BE¥
Reserves - -
Accurmulated [oss (1,012 429 448 416)

3488228 4,052 241
Surplus on revaluation of assets - nat of tax 27 5,388 16,594

3.493,616 4,068,828
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20

42; The anngxed notes 1 to 42 form an inlegral pan of Lhese financial statements.

ent / Chief Executive Director ctor irgctor



EMIRATES GLOBAL 1SLAMIC BANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2009

- Mote 2005 2008
Rupees in '000
Profit t retwm eamed on financings, investments and placements 21 1,914 228 1,080,376
Reium on deposits and other dues expensed 22 1.2M.850 SO8 Q&2
MNet spread ezmed 679,338 462 314
Provision agains! non-performing financings - nel a7 309,788 8043
Provigign for diminulion in the value of investments 831 34,2 6,534
Reversal of provision against nen-parforming commedity murabaha 7.3 - {17, 388)
344 0k (1,811}
Met spread after provisions 335,329 464 125
Cthor income
Feg, commission and brokerage income 56,801 1
Dividend income - 10,308
Income / {loss) from dealing in foreign cumencies 102 482 (5,089
Capital {lass) f gain on sale of securities 23 (2 B78Y 1,462
Unrealised gain 7 {logs} on revaluation of investmenis
classified as held for trading - -
Other incarme 24 145 450 AR G55
Total othar income 301,385 g5 111
637,184 550238
Othar oxpenses
Administralive expanses 25 1,410,569 040,634
Other provisions { write offs 21,539 -
Cither charges 26 3.958 3]
Total other expenses 1,436 086 950,588
_ {798 882) {301,363)
Extra ordinary / unusual items - ;
Loss hefare taxation (FOB BE2) {301,363
Taxation - Curent - for the year {11,391) -
- for prior year - -
- Deferred 28 2485 080 131,247
234,869 131,247
Loss after Eaxation (5954 013) {260.116)
Accumulalad loss brought forward {448 418) {188,300,
Accumulated loss carried forward {1.012.4249) {448 416}
Less per share {(Rupees) 24 {1.25) {0.60}

% The annexed noles 1 lo 42 form an integral parl of these financial slatements.

Director irector Director




EMIRATES GLCBAL ISLAMIC BANK LIMITED
STATEMEMT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 21, 2004

2009 2008
Rupeec in G20
Less for the year - after taxation {564,013 {260,116)
Oiher comprehensive income . .
Tatal comprehensive income f {{oss] for the year (564,013]) [260,116)

As per Lhe requirement of the State Bank of Pakistan, surplus / deficit on revaiuation of available-for-sale securities is
tequirad to ba taken to a separate zccount 'Suiplus on revaluation of assels' shown in the balance shesd below squily.
Accordingly, it has not been included in the stalement of comprehensive income. ﬂ'

% The annexed noles 1 (e 42 form an integral par of these financial slatemerds.

— -
-~ /&ﬁa
.-z/ J”f y
Want { Chief Expcutive Director irector




EMIRATES GEOBAL ISLAMIC BANK LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2009

Note 2009 2008

Rupesas in 'DDD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss belore taxation (7O8.B82) (391,363
Adjustments for nen-cash and ather ifems:
Dividend incorne - {10, 308)
Depreciation 111,382 TO.BET
Depreciation on ijarah assets held under IFAS 2 130,554 -
Amartisation anai1z 24 851
Fixed assets writtert-off 20,443 BoG
Provision against non-perdonming financings 309,783 9043
Pravision for dirninution in the valus of investrments 34,221 B.534
Finance charges an leasad assets 15,481 8,100
Provision againsl nen-performing commodiy murabaha - {17.388)
652,281 02380
(146,601 (298.8974)
(Increase) f decreass in aperating assets
Due frorm financiak institutions (1,280,000 1.047.388
Financing {2.102.102) (5.165.001)
Cithers agsels {exchrding advance taxaiion) 1876 3258 (2,492 605}
{1.505.774) BE10.219)
ncrease f (decrease) in operating liabifities
Bills payahble 114285 48 654
Borowings {705,000 6546 082
Depasits and other accounts 4 183,840 6.330.693
Other liabilifies 237,387 277316
3,835.315 7321751
Income tax paid (8.051) {6 426}
MNet cash inflow from operating activitios 2,173,883 406,132
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
et investments In available-for-sale securthes {645 97 7) 470,972
Net investments in operating fixed as=ats {292 OR8) (¥09,661)
Bividend income received 10,5308
Received on disposal of operating fixed assets 8,024 5,615
Mgt cash outflow on investing activities {830,821} (116371
CASH FLOWS FROM FIRANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of lease obligations [20,510) 41,750
Receipt ol shares subzcniption money - 452 a0z
Net cash (outflow on) / inflow from financing activities 150,510} 451 0582
increase / [decreasel in cash and cagh equivalents 1.192 458 {305 524)
Cash and cash eguivalenls at beginning of the year 1.104 512 1,411,038
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30 2.296.970 1.104 512

J ihe annexed notes 1 to 42 formt an irlegral par of these inancial statemems. I

fif
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dent f Chief Execulive i Director echor ctor



EMIRATES GLOBAL 1SLAMI: BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ECUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED GECEMBER, 31, 2008

Balance as at Janvary 01, 2008
Receipl of shares subscription money
lssue of share capital
Lass after {axation far the year

anded Dacmber 31, 2008
Balance as at Decembar 31, 2008

Lotz after taxation for the year
ended Decmber 31, 2009

Balance as at Decembar 31, 2005

Sha
Sham: re Capital | Statutory| Reveanue| Accumu-
. subscrip- Total
capital | reserve | reserve | reserve | lated loss
tion money
Rupsas in "000
JC0000  1.007.855 - “ - {188,300} 3 B15.555
- 492 802 - - - - 432,802
1,500,000 (1,500,000) - - - - -
- - - - - {260,716)  (260,116)
4,500,000 a57 - - - (448 4160 4062241
- - - - - (564,013 (564,013
4,500,000 657 - - -

%The annexed notes 1 1o 42 form an imegral pad of these financial statements.

; Director ff’ ggtor

o W,

Prpafdent f Chief Executive

{1,012,429) 3.488 228

Director




EMIRATES GLOBAL ISLAMIC BEANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENCED DECEMBER 31, 2009

21

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The bank was incorporated in Fakistan on December 20, 2004 a5 a public Irmiled cormpany uider the Companses
Ordinance, 1984,

The main objective of the bank is to camy on ISiamic banking busiiess in and cutside Pakistan In gocordance and in
conformity with |slamic Shadah. The Dank was granted an Islamic Banking License BLE-01(07), issued by the
Banking Foiicy and Regulations Department of Ine State Bank of Pakistan vida thair ettar ne. BPRD (LCGD-02)/625
TETHZ007/521 dated January 18, 2007 under section 27 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1952 read with
Islamic Banking Department orcvlar no 2 of 2004, Subsequently, the bank was also granted approval for
commencemenl of business as a schaduled bank with effact from February 12, 2007 by the State Bank of Pakistan
vide their better no. BPARD (LCGD-OMNE25- 760002007 260 dated February 12, 2007

The Bank is operaling through ffty eight branches and two sub - banches 25 at December 31, 2000 {2008: Forty
branches). It registersd offica is located at 162, Banglore Yown, Main Shahrah-s-Fasal, Karach.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Thase financial slatemeants have been prepared in accodance wilh approved accounting slandards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such Intemational Financial Reporting Stendards [IFRE)
igsead by the International Accounting Standards Board and |slamic Financial Accolnting Slandards (IFAS) issued
Ly the instifute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 85 are notked under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 o1 dirgclives issued by the
Securibes and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of Pajstan (SBP) Wherever the
reguiraments of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Sanking Companies Crdinance, 1662 or directives issued by the
SECP and \he SBF differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the eguirgments of the Companies Oadinance.
1984, Banking SCompanies Grdinance. 1962 or ke reguirements of the sakd directives grevail.

The SBP has defered the applicability of Inlemational Accounting Standard (AS] 35, Fimancisl Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and Ialernational Accounting Standard (IAS) 40, 'Investment Property’ for Banking
Companies through BSD Circular Me 10 dated August 26, 2002 121 further instructions. In addition the SECP has
deferred the applicability of Internavonal Pmancial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7. 'Financial Instruments: Tisclosures’
on banking companies vide SRO 411011 2008 4 further orders  Accardingly, the requirements of these standards
have not baon considered in the preparaton of these hnancial statements  Howewer, investments hawve been,
clagzified and valued in accordance with e requirements prescnbed by the SBP through varnious circulars.

Changes in accourding policy and disclosures arksing from standards, interpretations and amentdments to
published approved accounting standands that are effectiva in the current year:

{ay |AS 1 (Revizad), "Presaniation of financial staterments’ (effective fror January 1, 20089 was issuad n
September 2007, The revised standard prohibits the presentation of tems of neome and expenses {that is.
‘man-owner changes in equity’} in the statement of changes in equity, requirrmy ‘nen-ownes changes in aquity’ to
te presented separately from cwner changes in equity. Al non-owner changes in equity will be reguired 1o be
shawn in & perfonnance slatenent, but anfities can choose whether o present one pedormance Slatement (1ne
stalemeant of comprehenciee incone) or two  statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensme inceme). Where entibes reslate or raclassify comparative information, they will be required to
presenl a restated stalement of financial postion (hakance shesl) as at the baginning of the comparative penod
in addilion to the current requrement 10 present balance sheels 2t the end of the current period ard
comparative period.

The bank has appiied 1A% § (revised) dunng the cument period, and has accordingly changed s accauniing
policy 1o comply with the new requirements of 1AS. The bank has elected o show elements of tomprenansive
income in 3 separate stztement. The change in presentalion has not affected the values of the net assets of
e bank for aither the carremt or any of the prior pancds and there is no impact on the eamings per share,

(b} 1FAS 2 'yarah'. The 3BF wde BD Cicular Koo 01 dated tanuary 27, 2002 directed that Yslamic Financial
Accounting Slandard (IFAS) 2 'ljarab’ shall be lollowed [or the bank's accounting paniod beginning an ar after
Jaruary 1. 2005 This stangard requires thal the yarah transactions booked on o after Janoary 1, 20029 should
be accounted for as operaling leases whereby assels kased out under jjarah should be recorded as ficed
assets in the books of the bank and should be cassihed separately according to the natere of zuch assets
distinguished from the assets in the use of the bank. These assets should be depreciated guer tha term of the
jjarah. Remal income should be recognised on accrua! basis 55 and when the rental becemes dus. The hank
has adopted IFAS 2 {from January 1, 20059 and the assets leazed ocut under jarah are shown seperately under
financing' {nole 9 2). As Ihe requirements of IFAS 2 are for all Rlure fjarah, the adoption of this standard did
nak reguine any resiatement. 7’

Hico ¥
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22 Other standards, interpretations and amendments 1o published approved accounting standards that are
effactive in the current year

{a) 1AS 23 (Amendment} ‘Borrowing costs’ (effective from January 1, 2008} !t requires an entity to capitalise
bormowing costs direclly attibutable to the acguisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that
takes a substantial period of time to gel ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of Lhat asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs has been remeoved. Further, the definition of borrowing cost has
been amended so that interest expense is caloulated using the efleclive interest method defined in 1AS 29
‘Financial instruments: Recognilion and measurement’. The bank has adopled the aforementioned amendmant
from January 1, 2009. The management of the bank believes that presently the amendment doss not have any
impact on the bank's financial stalements.

(B} 1AS 18 (Amendment}, "Employee benefits’ (effective from January 1, 2009).

- The amendment clarifies that a plan amendment that results in a change in the extant to which benefit
promises are affected by fidure zalary increases is & curtailment, while an amendment that changes
benefits attributable to past service gives rise to a negalive past service cost if it results in 2 reduction in
the present value of the defined benefit abligation.

- The definition of relurn on plan assels has been amended to state that plan administration costs are
deducled in the calculation of return on plan assets only to the exlent tha! such costs have been excluded
from measurement of the defined benofit ohligation.

- The distinction between short term and long ferm employee benefils will be based on whether benefils are
due 1o be setlled within or after 12 months of employee service being rendersa,

- A5 37, 'Prowsions, contingenl liabilities and conmtingenl assels', reguires contingent liakililies to be
disclosed, not recognised. [AS 19 has been amended to be congislent,

The bank has adopted the aforementioned amendments from Januzry 1, 2009, The managemeanl of the bank
believes that these amendmenls do not have any impact on the bank's financial statements.

fed  FAS 38 {Amendment), ‘Impaiment of assets' (effective from January 1. 2009). As per the new reguirements,
where fair value less costs lo sell iz calculated on the basis of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent to
those for value-in-use calcutation should be made. The bank has adopled the aforementionet amendment from
January 1, 2008. The management of the bank believes that presently the amendmenl dess not have any
impact on Lhe bank's financial statements.

{dy 1AS 38 (Amendment), Intangible assets' (effective from January 1, 2008). The amended standard states that g
prepayment may only be recognised in the event that payment has teen made in advance of obtaining right of
access 10 goods or receipl of services The bank has adopted 1he aforemantioned amendmen! from January 1,
2002, The management of the bank believes that this amendment does nat have any impact on the bank's
hnancial statements.

{#] IFRS 2 {Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’ (effective from January 1. 2009). The amended skandard deals
with vesting condifions and cancellations. It clanfies that vesting conditions are service conditions =nd
peformance conditions only  (Hiner fealures of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. Thess
fealures would need to be included in the grant date fair value for transactions with employess and others
providing similar services; they would not impact the number of awards expected to vest or valualion theregt
subsequent to grant date. Al cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should recaive the same
accounting treatment The bank has adopted the aforementioned amendment from January 1, 2009 The
management of the hank believes that presently the amendment doss not have any impact on the bank's
financial staterments.

(i IFRS 8 'Operating segments’, {effective fram January 1. Z008). IFRS & replaces A5 14, "Segmenl reporting’,
The new standard reguires a ‘management agpraach’, under which segment informaton is presented an the
same bazis a3 that used for internal reporting purposes. I addition, the segments are repored in 2 manner that
is more consislent with the internal reporting provided to the chisf operating decision-maker. Al banking
companies in Pakistan are regured io prepare their annual financial slatements in line with the format
mescribed under 85D Circular No. 4 daled February 17, 2006, 'Revised forms of Annyal Financial Stalements’,
effective from the accounling year ended December 31, 2006.The management of the bank beiieves that as the
5BP has defined the segmenl cateqonzation in the above mentioned circular, the SBF requirements prevail
over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, the segment informalion disclosed in these fi nanc:ai

2 statements iz based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.
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() Thene are other amendments (0 the approved accounting standards and interpretations thal are mandatory far
avcounting pericds beginning on or afler January 1, 2009 but are considered not to be relevant or fo have ary
sigrihcant effect on the bank's operabons and are thersfore not detailed in these financiai statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendmants o pubiished approved accounting standard that are not yet
effactive

The following standards. interpretalions angd amendments t0 existing standards have been published and are
mandatony for the bank's accounting periods beginning on ar after Jangary 1, 2010:

{g} IFRIC 17, ‘Distibution of noncash assels 10 owners’ (effectva on or after July 1, 20068). This inlerpretation
provicdes guidana: on accounling for arrangemends whereby an anfity distributes non-cash assets to
shareholdars aithar as 2 distribulion of reserves of as dividends. IFRS 5 has sls0 been amended to require thai
assate are clazsifed as held for distribotion only when they are svalable for dstribuben in their present
condition and the distribution ie highly probable. The bank will apply IFRIC 17 from 4 January 2010, Af pragant |
the managarmant ef the kank believes that the aforementioned amendment 5 nol expected 1o have any impact
on the bank's financial slataments.

{B Accounting ard Auditng Qrganisation for Islamic Financial Institulions (AAONF) Shariah SEndards (effechve
an or after July1, 2010} The SBP vide |BD Circufar No. 01 dated January 12, 2010 has direclsd tha the
foilowing Accounting and Audising Crganisation for Islamic Financial Institutons (AAOF) Shanab Standards
stall be adopted w.e.f. July 1, 2010

- ALHF Shariah Slandard Mo 3 {Delaul in Payment by a3 Debtor)

- AAOIFE Skariah Slandard No. 8 {Murabaha to tha Purchase Cidarar)

- AACHFL Shariah Slandard Mo 9 {ljarah & ljarah Muenlahia Bittamleak}
AAOIF Shariah Standard Ne. 13 (Mudaraba)

The management is in the process of assessing the mmpact of the adoption of these standards on tha bank's
financial staterments.

{u]  There are gertain other slandards, interpretalions and amendmenls to Lhe published approved accounbing
standands and interpretations thal ane mandatory for accounting perneds beginning on or afler January 1, 2030
but arg considered not to be relevant ar to have any significant effect on the Bank's operalions and are
therafore nol datailed in these Anancal statements. .

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
Accounting convention

These financial statemants have bean prepared under the historcal cost convention excepl for certain investments
which have beon carried at fair value and certain staff retirement banefits which are camed at present value.

Critical accaunting estimates and judgenants

The pregaration of financial stalemems in conformity with approved accounling standards requines management o
make judgments. eshimales and assemplions thal affect the reported amaunis of assets and liabilities and income
and expenses |t also regquires management o exercise judgemenl in applicalion of s agcounting policies. The
estirmates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and vanous other factors that are believed
to be reasonabte under the circumstances. These estimates and assumplions are reviewed o1 an ongoing hasis.
Revisions (¢ accounling esimates are recogmsed i the penod n which the estimate is revised f the revision affecls
ordy that peried, oein the peried of revision and fulure peaods if the revision affects belh current and future penods.

Signifcant accounting estmales and areas where judgements were made by the management in the application of
accounting polickes are as 1cliows:

i) Classification of investments {noles 4.2 and 8)

il Provision againsl imsasiments (nodes 4 2 amd 81 and Anancings (notas 4.3 and 3.7)

in)  Current and deferred taxabon (notes 4.7, 11 and 28}

vy Provision for staff ratirement banefits undar the defined banefit plan {notas 4.9 and 32)
vl Delermination of wsaful wes and deprecation rates of fiked assels (nole 4 5 andd 10

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLWIES

The significant accounling policiaz appliad in the praparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have Deen consistently applied lo all the years presented except as explained in nate 2 1 10 these financiat
statemants.




4.4

4.2

4.3

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks in
current and deposit accounts.

{nvestmeants
The bank classifies s investments as follows:
(a) Held for trading

These are securities, which are efther acquired for generating a profit fromn shorderm fluctuations in market
pnces. inlerest rate movements, deaiers margin or am sacurilies included in a portfolio in which a pattern of
short-term prafit taking exists.

{b) Held ta maturity

These are secunties with fixed or determinable payments and Aixed matunty in respect of which tha bank has
the positive inlent 2nd ability to held to maturity.

ic} Awailable for sale

These are investments, clher than those in sebsidianes and associates, that do nol fall under the held for
trading or held to maturity categories.

(d} Associates

Associales are all enfities over which the bank has significant influence bul not control. Investment in
assaciates s carried at cosl.

All purchases and sales of investments thal require delivery within the lime frame established by regulations or
market convention are recognised al the trade date. Trade dale is the dale on which the bank commits to purchase
or selt the investment.

Investments other than those categonised as held for trading are inilially recognised at fair value which includes
transaction costs aszaciated with the investment. Inveslments classified as hetd for trading are iniGally recognised at
fair value, and transaction cosis are expenzed in the profit and loss account.

In accardance with the requiremends of the State Bank of Pakislan, guoted securilies other than those classified as
‘held lo maturity’, investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates (which gualify for aceounting under
Internationaf Accounting Standard - 28), are subsequently re-measured to market value. Surpius f {deheity arising on
revaluation of quoted securities classified as ‘available for sale”, is taken 10 a separate account shown in the balance
sheet below eguity. Surplus { (deficil) arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are dsssified as ‘held for
trading', is taken to the profit and loss account. Investments classified as ‘held to maturity’ are carried at amortised
cast.

Unguoted equity securities are valued al the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up vaiue of equity securities is
calculated with reference to he net assets of the investes company as per the latest availabie audited financial
staterments. In cases where the break up value of such shares is less than the cosk, the difference of the cost and
break up value is classified as loss and provided for accordingly by charging to the profit and loss aceounl

Invesiments in subsidiaries and associates (which qualify for accounting under International Accounting Standard -
28) ate carried at cost However, where the break-up value of investiment in subsidiaries and associates is I2ss than
the cost. the difference between the cost and the break-up value is charged off 1o the profit and loss acoount,

Prowvision dor diminulion in the values of securilies {except debentures, parlicipalion term certihcates and term finance
certilicates} is made after considering impairment, i any, in their value. Provision for diminuion in value of
debentures, participation term certificates and term finance certificates is made as per the requirements of the
Prudential Regutations issued by the Siate Bank of Pakislan,

Financing

Financings are stated net of specific and general provisions against non-performing financings, if any, which are
charged i the profit and loss account.

Under murabaha financing, funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as 'advance for murabaha'. On
culminaticn of murabaha ie. sale of goods to cuslomers, myurabaha financings are recorded at the deferred sale
price net of profit, Goods purchased but remaining unsold al Ihe balance sheet date are recorded as inventories. .~
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{jarah financing booked on or after January 1. 2009 is accounted for as an oparating lease as per the requirernants of
IFAS 2. Accomdingly assets leased out under ijarah are recorded as fixed assets and depreciated over the tertm of
fjarah and the related rental income is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrus! hasis.

ljarah financing bocked before January 1, 2004 is accounted for as a finance lease whereby assets under ijarah
arrangemenls are presented as a receivable at an amount egual 10 net investment in ijarah. Uneamed income ie.
excess of aggregale rantais over the cost of the asset is recorded at the inception of the ijarah and is amartised over
the term of the jjarah 56 a5 1o produce a constand rate of retum on net investment in ijarah.

Specific provision against non-performing financing is delermined in accordance with the Prudentiel Regulations and
other direclives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. General provision againsl consumer financing is determined in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bark of Pakistan.

Financings are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
inventories

As stated in note 4.3 to these financial statements, goods purchased but remaining unsold at the bafance shest date
are recordad as inventories. The bank valses its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
invenlories represents the actuz! porchase price paid by the costormer as a2n agent on behalf of the bank from the
funds dishursed for the purpose of culmination of murabaha,

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busingss less the estimated cost
necessarny o make the sale.

Operating fixed assets and depreciation
{a] Owned

Froperty and equipment, other than land, are stated at cost less acoumuiated deprecialion and accumulated
trnpairment losses (if any). Land is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method in accordance with the rafes specified in note 10.2 to these
financial statements and after taking into account residual value, i any. The residual values, useful lives and
deprecialion methods are reviewed and adjusted, i appropnate at each balance sheet date, Depreciation on
additigns is charged from the month the assels are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in
which the assets arg disposed off,

Gains [ losses on sale of fixed assets are credited f charged to the profit and loss account.

subsequent costs are ineludead in the assets’ camying amount and recognised as a separate asset as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future benefils associaled with the item will flow to the bank and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All ether repairs and maintenance are charged to income as and when incumed,

i Leased assets

Azsets held under finance Jease are slated at lower of fzir value or present value of minimum lease payments at
inception less accumulated depreciation. The outstanding obligation under lkease is shown as a liability net of finance
charges allocable to future periods.

The Anance charges are allocated to accounting periads in @ manner so as 1o provide a constant periodic rate of
return an Lhe outstanding liatility,

Depreciahion on assets held under finance [ease is charged in a manner consistent with that for depreciable assets
which are owned by the hank.

{z} Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-prograss is staled al cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure eonneciad with
specific assets incurred during installalion and conginuciion period are camied under capital work-in-progress. These
are lransferred to specific assets as and when assets become available for use.

{d) ljarah assets

Assets leased aut under ijarah on or atter January 1, 2009 are recorded as fixed assels and slated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses, if any. Assets under ljarah are shown under

financing' and depreciated over the temm of ijarah using the siraight line basis. However, in the event the asset is

expected to be available for re-ijarah, depreciation is charged over the economic life of the asset. ﬁ?
g

;
S
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I recoverable amount. The resuiting impairment lass is taken to the profit and loss account,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are slated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumuiated
impainnant losses, if any. Intangible assets are amodised from the month, when these assets are available for use,
using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortised on the basis of the estimaled
useful fife over which ecenomic benefils are expected to fAlow fo the bank. The residual value, useful life and
amgrtisation methad are reviewsd and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance shest date.

Intangibfe assets having an indefinite useful ife are staled al acguisition cost. Provisions are made for permanent
diminution in the value of assets. if any. Gains and lssses on disposals, if arry, are taken to lhe profit and loss
account.

Revenue recognition
- Frofit on muratiaha transactions is recognised over the term of these transactions on a straight ling basis.

- Rental income on jjargh financing booked on or after January 1, 2009 is recognised on accruad basis as and
when the rentals become due.

- The bank follows the finance method in recogrising income an jjarah contracts booked befors January 1, 2008
Under this method the unearned income i.e. the excess of aggregate ijarah renlals over the cost of the asset is
deferred and then amorised over the term of the ijarah, 50 as 1o produce a constant rale of retum on net
investment ir fjarah. Gaing J losses on lermination of jjarah contracts are recognised as income on a recaip
basis. [ncome on fjarak is recognised from the date of delivery of the respective assets to the musiajir.

- Income eamed from Shardah non-compliant avenues is nol recognised in the profit and lose account. This
inceme Is classified as charity payable in accordance with the recommendation of the Shariah Advissr of the
bank.

- Profit an diminishing musharaka is recognised on accrual basis.

- Commission on |etters of credit, acceptances and letters of guarantee is recognized on recaipl batis.
- Dividend income is recognised when Ihe bank’s right 1o receive the dividend i5. establizhed.

- Profit an imvestment in sukuk bonds is recognised on acerual basis,

- Profit and Inss on sale of investments is included in income currently.

Taxation

{a) Currant

Frovigsion for currem taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
eonsideration tax credils and rebates available, if any. The charge for the current lax also includes adjustrments,
where cangidered necessary relating 1a prior years, arising from assessments finalised during Lhe year.

(b] Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the
amounts atiributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporfing purposes and amounts used for taxation PUMPOSES.
tn addition. the bank alss recards deferred tax asset on available tax losses. Deferred lax is calculaled al the rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the differences are expected to reverse, based an tax rates that have
peen enacted at the balznce sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised onily to the exterd that it is probable Lhat future 1axable piofils will be avalfabia
against which the asset can be utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assel is reviewed at each balance sheet dale and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sulficient laxable profits will be available o allow all or part of the defemed tax asset 1a be
utilised.

The bank alsq recogrises 3 deferred tax asset liabilily on the deficit f surplus on revaluation of securities which is
adjusted against the related surplus / deficit in accordance with the requirements of the Inlernational Accounting
Slandard (1AS) 12, income Taxes'

Impairment

The earrying amount of assels zre reviewed at each balance sheet date for impaiment whensaver evants or changes
in cifcumstances indicste thal the camying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable, If such indication exists,
and where the carrying value exceeds the eslimaled recoverabie amount, assels are written _down to their
-
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k{i:.truments is taken to the profil and loss account. /W

Staff retiveament benefits
(a) Dwafined henefif plan

The partk operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. Annual contributions are
made tz the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendation. The acluarial valustion is camied out using
the projected unit credit method. Acluarial gans and losses at each valuation date in excess of the greater of 10% of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation or 10% of the fair value of the plan assets, as computed as of the
previous balance sheet date, are amodised over the average remaining working fives of the employees.

(b} Defined contribution plan

The bank also operates a recognised contribulory provigent fund for all permanent employees. Equai monthly
contributions are made, both by the bank and the employees, ta the fund at a rate of 10 percenl of hasic salary.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of past
events it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

chligation and a rehable estimale of the amount of the obligalion can be made. Provieions are reviewed at each
balance sheet dale and are adjusted 10 reflect the cument best estimates.

Cantingent assets are nol recognised and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed unless the probability of an outlow of resources
embadying economic benefis is remote.

Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial statements are measured using the cumency of the primary economic ervironment in

which the bank operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the bank's functional
and presentalion currency.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated fo rupees at the foreign exchange rates ruling on the transaction
dale. Manetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in rupes terms at the rates of exchange

prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Commtments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are franslaled at forward rates applicable to their
respective maturities. Contingent liabilities / cormmitmaents for letlers of eredit and letters of guarantee denominatad in
foreign currencies are expressed in rupea terms al the exchange rates rulireg &1 the balance sheet date.

Financlal instruments
{a] Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets caried on the balance sheet include cash and balances with treasury banks, balances wilh ather
banks, due from financial institutions, investments, financing and certain receivables.

Financial lizbilities carried on the balance sheet ingludes bills payable, due to financial institutions, deposits and other
accounts, iabiliies against assets subject to finance lease and certain other liabilities .

Financial assets and financial Habiliies are recognised at the time when the bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and de-recognised when the bank loses control of the contractual righls that comprise
the financial assets and in the case of financial liabililes when the obligation specified in the contract iz discharged,
cancalled or expired.

(b) Derfvative financial instruments
Uerivative financial instrumants are initially recognised at fair value on the dale on which a derivative conlract is

entered ink: and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, All derivative financial insiruments are camied as assel
when fair value is positive and lability when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of defivalive financial

s

o
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{e¢} Off-setting

Financial assatz and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financizl statements when
there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amaunts and there is an intention 1o settle on & nat basis, -
or lo realise the assei and seltle the liability simultaneoushy.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) / basic and diluted loss per share for its shareholders.
Basic EPS / loss per share iz calculated by dividing the profil or loss atinbutable to erdinary shareholders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS £ loss per share is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss atiributable to the ardinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the eflects of ail diltive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Seament Reporting

A segment iz a distinguishabie cemponent of the bank that is engaged either in providing products or senvices
fbusiness segment}, or in providing products or services within a particular economic emviranment [geographical
segment), which is subject to nisks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

[a} Business segments

The business segments within the bank have been categerised infe the following classifications of husiness
segrments in accordance with the requirements specified by the SBP.

- Corporate finance

Corporate banking includes services provided in connection with mergers and acguisitions, underwriting,
privatization, securitization, research, debts {(government, high yield), equity, syndicalion, IPO and secondary privale
placements.

- Trading and sales

It includes fixed income. equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securties, lending and
repos, brokerage deb! and prime brokerage.

- Retail Banking

it includes retail lending and deposits, banking services, frust and estates, private lending and depasis, banking
service, rust and estates mvesitment advice, merchant f commercial f corporate cards and private labels and retail,

- Commercial banking

Commercial banking includes project Anance, real estate, export finance, trade finance, factorng, Ieasing, lending,
guaranless, bills of exchange and deposits.

(b} Geographical ssgments
Currently, the operations of the bank are camied out in Pakistan only,
Dividand and appropriation $o reserves

Cvvidends and appropriation {o reserves approved after balance sheet date, except appropriations which are reguired
by the: law, are recognised as a liability in the banks' financial stalements in the year in which these are approved.

MNote 2009 2008

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Rupees in "000
In hand

Lacal currengy 228108 199,550

Foreign currency o7.58vY 7,131
With Slate Bank of Pakistan in

Local gurrengy cument account T | FGT 168 506,711

Fereign currency current accourt 5.2 2.604 3720

Foreign currency deposit account 53 93,512 75,158

863,284 586 630

With Mational Bank of Fakistan 148,203 26,067

1.537.882 909 378
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The local currency currenl account is mainiained with the State Bank of Pakistan {(SBF] as per the requirements of
Seclion 36 of the State Bank ol Pakistan Acl, 1856 This section requires banking companies to mairtain a local
currency cash resenve in curent account cpened with the SBF at a sum not lass than such percentage of its time
and demand liabilities in Pakistan as may be preacribed by the SBP.

This represents LS dollar settlement account maintained with the SBF.

This represents balance maintained with 3BP in US Doltars in respect of cash reserve requirement and special cash
reserve requirement against the bank's foreign cumency deposils. The balance to be maintained in respect of the
cash reserve requirement is 10 be kept in 2 non - remunerative account and s equal to atfeast 5 percaemt of Lhe
foreign cumency deposits.

The balance to be maintained in respect of the special cash reserve requirement is equal to atleast 6 percert of e
bank's foreign cumency deposils, This accounl is also maintained on a non - remunerative basis il some shariah
compliant foreign currency inslrumeanls are developed.

MNote 2003 2008

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Rupees in "00¢
Inside Pakistan :

Cn currend account o 843 2,402

In depasit accounl 5.1 38773 168.092E8
Qutside Pakistan

2n current account 913 482 23,804

950 078 105 134

These carry a return at rales ranging from 5.00% to 15.5% (2008: 4.63% to 13.50%) per annum.

Mote 2009 2008
CUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Rupees in "000
Caill money lendings - -
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repa) - -
Receivable agains! commuodity murabaha T.2& 721 1,600,000 320 000
1,600,000 320 000
Particulars of due from financial instifutions
In local cumency 1,600,000 320,000
In foreign currency - -
1,600,000 320 000
Receivable against commadity murabaha
Gross amount receivable against commeodity murabaha 1,654 219 335 436
Less: Profit for future perinds 52 588 15,195
Profit receivable as al Gecember 31, 200% - shown
under other assets 41,631 3,241
1,600,000 J20, 000
Provision against commaodity murabaha T3 - -
1,600,000 S20,000

This represents placements made with varicus financial institutions against commodity murabaha agreement and
carry relum at rates ranging from 10% to 14.25% (2008: 23% 1o 25%) per annum.

2009 008
Particulars of provision against commadity murabaha Rupees in "004
Opening balance - 25,000
Charga for the year - -
Reversal . {17.388)
Write-off - {7.612)
Closing balance - =



10
8. INVESTMENTS

a4 Invastments by types

Mcte o 20408
Giiven x5 Ghran ag
Hedd by Bard ; al Tofal Hedd by Bank Colkateral Tokal
Rupsos in 048
Availatle for sale
Subuk certilicates / bonds 8.5 3.H1.299 - 3241389 2344177 - 2594177
Ordinary shates 1] 103, 768 - 103, P68 103,768 - 103,764
Azzociate -
Takaful Pakistan Limibed a4 52,20 - 52,200 52201 - 5,00
3,597,367 - 3,297 367 2,750,135 - 2,750,145
Less. Provisen kot diertinution n
valug of ivestments 5.3 (4654 - (45 545! {12.428) : {12.42E)
Investmanls fnet of proviskon) 3350718 - 2240748 EFSTINT - 27T
[CreficH] f surpus on revalution of
‘gwaslable for sale' secunles 27 S988T - 5087 1E,442 13,442
Totat mwsstieents af market valug 1356705 - 3,356,105 2756150 - 2,756,154
Mafe 2009 2008
Bz Investments by segments Rupess in "000
Bonds
Sukuk cerificates / bonds 85 3241 3549 2594 1¥T
Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Gharibwal Cement Limited E6 100,000 100 000
Huffaz Seamless Pipes Limied 8.6 3,768 3,788
Invastment in an associate 84 52200 92 200
Total investments at cost 3,397,367 2,750,145
Less: Provision for diminwution in vaive of investmems 8.3 (45 649} (12,428)
Investments {net of provision) 3.350.718 2737 7Y
Surplus on revaluation of "available for sale' securiies 27 OEB7F 16 442
Total investmants at mariot value 3,366 705 2,756,154

8.3 Particulars of provision for diminution in vatue of investmenis:

831 Opening balance 12428 5,804
Charged during the year 34221 6,534
Reversed during the year - -
Closing balance 45 5489 12,428

§.3.2 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment

Investment in Sukuk certificates [ bonds
Mew Allied Elecironics Indusiries (Private) Limiled 833 23,000 -

Investment in an associate
Takaful Pakistan Limited 834 215648 12,428
46 849 12,428

8.2.3 This represenls provision against the total oulstanding principal of sukuk certificales of Mew Allied BElectronics
Industries (Private] Limited held by the bank.

8.34 This represents the excess of the cost of ordinary shares of the investee compay over its break-up value. /y
T
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Investment in an azsociated campany - unlisted

2009 2008 2009 Latest svalzble

000 wquity H.I :: M Hame Gl the

FRnane i thiel sxscutive
Numbar of aha !
ahares Fupsisirs in '000 ® stasanrents
- L Drcamiber 31, Captemn . Jamil
I ]
Tekahd Pakistan Limited 510000 500000 52200 52,200 17 Ahthar Khan
52200 52 200

The above: associated company is incorporated in Pakistan and the nominal vaiue of these shares is Rs 10 each.

Sukuk cerfificates f bonds
2000 2008 2000 2008
N fthe |
ama of the Investes company Number of certificates Cast l
Rupees in ‘000
Coastal Refinery Limited* - - 323103 53,185
Mew Allied Electronics Industries (Privata) Limited T™RTZ - 25,000 .
Mational Induetrial Perks Development and Management Company 306, 00 AZ7 409 2.1, 1558 1,655,856
Sitara Ensrgy Limitad 3,200 - 14,052 -
Karachi Shipyard & Engineering Works Limited 66,333 &7,600 A2 412 438,000
House Buiding Finance Comporatien Limited 34,000 12 600 155,110 63,835
Educational Excellence Limited 32474 33,000 162,253 165,000
GOP ljarah Sukuk Bonds - 2,115,000 - 211,461
PACE Paklstan Limited 27,040 - 185,200 -
AL Rap Heakthcare ** . - 50,000 -
3,241,299 2,094,177
Other particulars of aukuk bonds are as follows:
CortHicates Profit
Parficulars danemins. Pridit rke per annum . ) Redemation timE
tinn in PKR pagmesn

Cnasial Refinary Lbmlled” 5000 & morth KIBR + 3.75 % Fems vy Payable in 10 consecuinee somi anewisl restalimenis
cummencng from te 18t moenth from the dete of first
o clowm,

Meewr Allled Electawrscs Indusiries »Mz5 3 msnith KIZOR + 2.8 % Cuartery Fayaiie In 16 aqual quarbshy skl ressls eovmendng

(Prrvate Lirmiled foem the 15t math from ihe dabe of Bt drawomen

Madignal industrial Farks DavatyHTERL 5,000 & meonth KEBOR + 05 % Senm annuslly Bt peyment on maurity.

ad Managemen Compamy
GOF llareh Suhwk Borets his 1] T-Bill + [ 44 % Some arnually  Sudiet payrnent on madurty
Farachi Shipyard & Engaveering 5008 G month KIBHS « 0.4 % Semi snnually  Payable i 8 egqual semi annual  inslaMments
Works Limsed amirnencang froam ke Sdh momlh frem dhe date of first
i AL

Sitars Emergy Limiad 5,000 & month KIBOR + 185 % Semi anrmally Payabde iR 10 equal semi annual installmens staring
Iriwrt B mondhs afier igsuc date

Educatonat Excallence Limied 5,000 Gavonlh KIHQR + 3 50 % Cuartmry Fayabés i 15 equal quartety Kslalments cormsecing
hoim Ihe 15t ranh from ihe dale of drenedomwn

Hewss Building Finence Corparation 5 D} & month KIBOR + 1.00 % Semi anmeally  Paygbie n 10 zqual sei Bnnual mataumant slamng

L Imiezd Fram the tHh mondh aftor w5ue data,

Paca Pakistan Limited h D0 & mocndh KIBOR + 1 5% Semi amually  Fayabe i 7 conseculive  egqed  semio annal
Instadirmenis, v first such insiadment Falling due o the
208N rmoath o B dade of w3t conlnbution.

Al. Raz Healhcare ™ 5000 & month KIEOR + 4.0 % Gemi annlly  Payable in 12 equal seml sl installmenl darting

frm & montha afer jsaus dale

Cul of tha 1otal particapetees of Rz 340 mallion (2008:RE 200 mikon) , B btk has made patial disbursement of Fa 333 1053 million (2008 R 59185 milkeny 1in
Decomnber 31, 2008, Uik Ihe endire distarsement is ned mate, 1he tukok saficabes cannol be issued.

* Out of the todal paticipation of s G50 mallion, the barh has rads partial dishuarsemend of R 50 milion §ill Cecomber 31, 2008, Uil the smtre dlsbu‘saljm 1% Rk

e, e sukuk cedificales cannot be issued.
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Particulars of investments in ordinary shares of listed companies

Number of Paid up value Total paid up
Company Name shares per share vahue Cast Market Value
Rupees in "000 —-emeeeee .
Availabie far sale
Gharibwal Cement Limited 6,666,666 10 &6 867 100,000 105 D00
Huffzz Seamiess Pipes Limted 227 403 10 2274 3.768 4,755
103,768 109,755
Gluality of availabla for sale securities
20008 2008
Arnount Rating Amount Rating
(Rupeas in "0} (Rupees in "000)
Coastal Refinary Limited 23103 Unrated 58, 185 Unreted
Hew Allind Electronics (ndustries (Private) Lonited 25,000 [} - 0
Maticnat frdusingl Parks Development ang 2001 152  GOF Guarantead 1,656,886 GOP Guaranteed
Managamerd Company
Engro Cherncal Fakistan Limiled - . Unrated
Karachi Shipyard & Enginearing Werks 337412 GOF Guaranieed 438,000 GOP Guaranteed
Silara Enemgy Limited 14 057 nraled - Unrated
ljarah Sukkuk Bond - 211,461 GOP Guaraniged
Educational Excellence Limiled 162,363 Linrated 165,600 Unrated
House Suikding Finance Corporation 153,110 A 63 635 At
Takaful Pakistan Lrmited 52,200 A- 52,200 A-
Huffaz Seambess Pipes Limited 3,758 Unratad 2.768 Unratad
Gharitwa| Cement Limiled 100,600 D 100,000 BBE+ -
PACE Fakistan Limiled 185,200 A -
AL Razi Healthcare A0,000 Unrated -
Total 3,307 367 2,750,145
Represents rating of the entily
Note 2009 2008
FINAMCING Rupees in 000
Inside Pakistan
- Murabaha finance §1 3,453 856 3,150,693
- ljarah under IFAS 2 az 832,433 .
- Nel investment in ijarah 9.3 1,031,348 1,454 505
- Dirninishing rmusharaka financing 3.832 297 2471518
= Over due acceplance payment 3280 7.666
- Balam financing 534,853 607 183
- Musawamah Finanging 8,228 79,802
- {arz-e-Hasna 84 22015 15,652
- Rahnuma Travel Sernvices a0z 1,855
Financing-gross 9,780 212 7,788 664
Fravision for non-perferming financing - specific .7 313,387 2.047
Prowision for non-performing financing - general 97 7.582 0,134
Financing - net of provision 9,439,243 7777 AR3
Murabaha receivable - gross 3737552 3378112
Less: Defarred murabaha income 135 360 100,010
Profit receivable as at Decamber 31 148,335 127 408
Murakaha financing 3,453,656 3,150,653
o

s

/i
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9.2 Net Investment in ijarah under IFAS 2 2009 Z008
Rupees in "G00
Assat value BE2.855 -
Accumulated depreciation (130,422)
832,433 -
9.2.1 Movement in net baok value of ijarab assets
COST ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
A5 at Afdibonsf AR at A5 at Aa at Writlen down
Charge far vadug 3% Al
A 1, (REpOEalE) [ December January 1, TN O Decembar3t, oo
2008 pwriteoffs] 3, 2008 200 ye 2004 2005
Rupess in ‘DGO
Ciar - Congwmear - 1,322 1,322 - -1 o112 5§32
Car - Corparate 433511 43511 - 7808 7808 35,205
Flant #nd mackinery a7y 251 877 251 - 118,578 119578 FLT )
Iiarah - slaf 41,751 Ll b - 2,581 2,449 38,332
(S8 (132
Oecember 37, 2005 - BE3 B35 BED E55 130,554 130,422 £3Z,433
{0y (152
SEZ BS5 o602 535 EEF 130,422 BIZ 433
2.3  Netinvestment in ijzrab
009 - 208
Laler than Leter than
Nt tater one and s Ovar ive Not lter one and iess  Over five
tan otw Total bhan g Tokel
ar than five YRArs than five years
e ears year Years
Rupaes in 000
ljarah reneals receivable 541,981 280, (47 4826 941 934 527 MD o914 487 2.056 1,549 5573
Resigual value 196,206 122,010 3,116 251 477 3,534 250,685 7,281 270510
Miraium sjarah papmants 754,257 22 057 13,047 1,193,356 830,544 1174172 16,357 1,820,073
Profd far fature pariods 101,674 50,339 50 162,008 167,767 177 AB0 a5y 155550
Present valus of minimum _
ijaran paymenls B0, 518 352,718 12,062 1,031 348 445 T7T 956, 722 15006 1,454 505
9.4  This represents mark-up free lbans to slaff advanced under the bank's human resource policies.
2 2008
2.5  Partledlars of financing Rupees in "000
9.51 Infocal cumency 9,438 243 7777 483
In fargign currency - _
9,439,243 F i A83
9.5 2 Shor-tgrm 3,511,063 3175566
Long term 5,828,100 4 801,517
9,438 243 FATT 483
2.6  Advances include Rs 1,213.994 mifion (2008; Rs 13.537 million) which have been placed under non-performing

status as delailed helow;

Category of classihcation

Substandard
Doubthul
Logs

Category of clagsifitation

Subslandard
Doubtivi

! Logg

2002
Comestic Overseas Total Provision Provigion
requlred L
Rupees in M0 e —_
714,066 714 5685 85,677 65,077
A28 831 - 328931 104 554 1104 £54
174 D97 170,087 143,751 143 751
1,113, 00 - 1,213,954 313,387 313,367
_21:'0!
Domeatlic Cremrgens Total Provision Pravislon
ARG L i hgdd
Rupeeg b KM o e e
13,537 13,537 2,047 2,047
- . . I:.T_
13‘53? - 13 537 2,047 2,047
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a7 Particulars of provision against non-performing Rnancing

2009 2008
Mote  Specific General Total Specific General Tatal
FRupees in "000
Opening balance 2,047 9,134 11,181 - 2138 2138
Charge for the year 311.340 311,340 2047 5,006 0043
Raversals - {1,552% {1,552 - - “
Closing balance a7 313,357 ¥.o62 320,968 2,047 8,134 11,181
9.7.{ FPFarticulars of provisions against non-parforming financing
2009 2008
Specific General Totat Specific General Tota!
Rupees in "000
In local currency i 7.582 320 9690 2,047 5134 11,181
In foreign currency - - - - - -
313,387 7.582 320,569 2,047 8,134 11,181
2009 nna
98 Farticulars of loans and financings tc executives, directars, Rupees in "000
associated companies ete.
Debis due by direclors, executives or officers of the bank
or any of them either severally or joinlly with any other person”
Balance at the beginning of the year 201,913 150,783
Financing during the year 169,167 167,169
Repayments (91,627 {26,038)
Baiance at the end of the year 359 453 291,913
Debls due by companies or firms in which the directars of the bank,
are interested as directors, partners or in The case of private
companies as mambers
Balance at beginning of the year - -
Finanging during the year - -
Repayments during the year - -
Balance al end of the year - -
Debts dike by assaciated and subsidiary companies, contralled frms,
managed madarabas and other related parlies
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,188 9259
Financing during the year 168 8.968
Repayments [2.281} (4.029)
Bialance at the end of the year 12,845 14,188
* These represent loans given by Lhe bank to its empioyees as per the termz of their employment.
Note 2608 2008
1. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS Rupees in "000
Capilal work-in-progress 10.1 S12.4427 501,931
Prapery and equipment 0.2 1,184,522 1,065, 992
intangible assets 10.3 44 BBT 51,108
1,741,728 1,615,028
181 Capital work-in-progress
Advance against purchase of property 276 680 291,680
Advancas to suppliers and contraclors 235,447 250,251
512 127 501,531

W

{7
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182 Property and equipment

2009
COST ACCUMIALATED DEPRECIATION
Writtan
i Charge for the down valye
Az xt Additions ! As xt Asat  yearijrevemal Asat as ot Raie o
Jamuary %, (dispasals)! Dacember  January 1, on disposals)i Decamber Decembar JEPreciation
809 partle offs) 3, 2049 200 {revarmalon 3, 2004 11 2008
writs nffs) :
Rupsst in ‘000 k.
Leasshoid kand 532600 . 532,600 - - - 332600 -
Badding on fearsehald land 205,805 125,448 309,144 12737 15,314 26,772 282372 5%
(21.508) (2,284}
Fumiture and fichure 59,568 40 DEE 90,038 5925 9,526 15,395 B3 642 0%
(558 (35
Computer eguipment 135,024 31,168 166,212 sf.295 46 574 %977 B%,235 13%
Office otispment 124628 62 075 186,412 10930 16,367 27 281 158,131 0%
{281} {16}
Yehides 1535 - {485 207 324 Fis €49 A
£150} {55} N
1,058 D 238,779 1,284 891 80,448 B9 24 167,212 1137 679
{150} (359
(22,758) {2368}
Auselx held under financa lease; _
Vehicles 117,010 . 100,180 29530 22,168 42,957 57,243 20%
{16.820) (B.BA1Y
Dacamber 31, 2004 1,176,070 I 1.395.0M 116,078 111 352 210,148 1144927
(16.5800) {8.956)
{22 708) (7.355)
2008
COST ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
Charge for tha Writian
"ge down val
Auat  Addions)  Asat Asat  year!(rversal  Azat “:""" Rata of
January1, (disposals)! Decemboc  Jamuary 1, on diposak)i December Decemper  ToPTecHtion
2006 fwrie offls) 31, 2008 MHE (reversaion 31, 2008 . 2008
write offs) )
Rupasc in D %%
Leasehald Lar 462 Bk Fib,KKG S32.600 - - - 532,600
EBuilding on laasehald land 84,088 121517 205 BG5S 3,589 9,148 13747 192 464 %
Fumidura ad fixure 17.8M% 41,593 59,568 1,143 4782 5325 53643 10
CAOmpLUter squipment 54 815 80,104 135024 18,638 3 661 40,299 B4, 725 3%
CIFfice equipment 39103 85, 545 124 628 3,163 7750 10930 113645 1%
(200 17
Vehices 1,635 - 1,634 230 7 LLY] 1474 20%
660,316 19,764 1059060 R 51677 3448 978,612
{20} 12
Assets bald unger Rnancs lease;
Vehices B 58,527 M7H0 17,504 16, 594 7530 #7380 W%
AR {4,501}
1233 {36)
Cecamber 31, 2008 731162 57291 1,576,070 44 287 ToEs7 pRliXizs s 1,065,952
(11,130) 4,513}
1.253) {363]

_—— e
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Intangible assets
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005
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION W"“"I'
down valie
Az - Asal Az at As at Rate of
at
Janwary 1, A.ddninm:.r December  Jamuary 1, l:ﬂh:rqe for Decembar ﬂa::mber amortsatian
20 OHON) om0 2000 W e e
Rupees in 00 w
Compuier sofwars R, TEY 23,993 112.?52_ __ OvEed 0442 68 075 44 GErY 13%
2008
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Writien
At at Asat As arar | T ARE oo
i al -
SJanuary 1, Additionsi Oecember  January 1, i'.:;arge for Decembar De:mbar amgrtisation
2o DORIRNSh oy oo 2008 YA om0 o
Rupass In D00 %
Cormputer softwara 43504 45175 BB.TED 12.812 24,851 a5 663 51,106 1%

Datails of disposals of cperating fixed agsats having <¢ost of more than Rs 1,000,000 or net haok value of Rs
250,000 or ahove

The details of disposals of operating fixed assets having cost of more than Rs 1.000.000 or net book valug of B
250,000 or above are given below:

Accumdlated Erooh, Sale Wods ot

Particulars Cost depreciation value ; disposal Farticulars of purchaser
——————————— = RUpees m 000 [

Motor vahiclas

Dizposed
Honda City BES 517 36% 269 [ Faisal Waheed (WP)
Honda City a4 264 67 670 Syed Wahead Akidi (VF}
Hond s City 46 353 403 433 Muharnmad Khalilullah (WR)
Honda City 854 341 513 513 Cramar )| Hassan Magwi (WP
Honda Chvie 1,043 a0 Ha 313 Sedig Karmally (SWP)
Suzuki Cultus 576 2 s ars Masud Zahid Sidcigue (WP}
Suzukl Cutus SG0 e 252 252 Gamar Jawad (RYF)
Suzuki Cultus L 271 289 289 Sold Alag Mujesb (RYP)
Suzuki Culws 580 197 393 393 | Undar HR Mohsin Amjad {RYF)
Suzuki Cullus 560 289 271 27| Paofiey Masroor Hussain Rao (RVP)
Suzun Cultus B2 202 4B0 480 Ehsan Waqar (RYP)
Suwzuki Alta 469 203 268 265 Umnair Hamid (&P
Suzuki Alto 490 106 34 384 Ahmed Arhar Syed (AW
Suzuki Afto 558 93 165 465 Farman Ak Khan (AYF}
Toyeta Canolla 1.043 522 a1 521 Syed Hasnain Rizvi {SvF)
Honda Accord 2410 1,907 a1 ) a03 Richard Rath [EWF)
Toyala Parado 3,450 2194 1,256 1.256 Tarig Hysain (President) F {CED)

16,511 598 7.813 7.813 B
[tems having cast of less than
As 1,000,000 or buok value
of kess than Rs 250,000 469 258 211 21
2009 ___ 16,980 8,956 8024 8,024
2008 12,383 7507

4 870 G675

peo
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2009 2008
1. DEFERAED TAX ASSETS - NET Rupees in "000
Deferred debits arising in respect of
Provision against non performing financings RATI 3813
Provision against diminution in value of investments 16,327 -
Pre-commencement expenditure 25, 7h6 38,624
Deferred {ax assel in respect of minimum tax to be camied forward
and adjusted against tax liability of future years 13.622 2427
Asset subject to ijarah under IFAS 2 7960 -
Accumulated tax lnsses 462 470 358,264
534,374 404 228
Deferred credits arizing due to
Fixad assets - leased 8,764 3483
Tax effacts of aceeleraled depreciation charged for
lax purposes on owned szsets 95,154 74,873
Tax effect of fixed assets - subject Lo ijarah 38,958 84,612
Tax effect of revaluation of investmants classified as availatie for sale 590 1,844
147 675 164 892

486,520 233,336

11.1 Through the Finance Act, 2007 7th Schedule (ihe 'Scheduls’), was inserted in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
the iaxation of banking companies. The schedule seeks to simplify the taxzlion of banking companies and is
applicable fram the tax year 2009, The Schedule did not contain transitory provisions 1o deal with the disallowances
made upta December 31, 2007 and cenain other matters including trealment redating io ijarah financing disburaed by
the bank. This issus had been takem up with the tax aulhorties through the Pakistan Banks' Association for
tormulation of transitory provisions to deal with the items which were previcusly treated differently under the
applicable provisions, During the current year, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) through their letter F.No
A{ITPL2008-48 daled Decamber 23, 20009 has cladfied thal the;

amounts provided for in the tax year 2008 and prior to the said tax year for or against irecoverable or doubtful
advances which were neither ¢laimed nor allowed as a 1ax deductible in any tax year, shall be allowed in the {ax
year in which such advances are aclually written off againsl such provisions, in accordance wilh the provisions
of Section 29 and 28A of the Incomea Tax Ordinance 2001,

amounts provided for in the tax year 2008 and prior 1o the said tax year for or against imevocable or doubtiul
advances, which were naither claimed nor allowed as a tax deductible in any tax year, which were written back,
in the tax year 2008 and thersafter in any tax year and credited to the profit and ioss account, shall be exciuded
in computing 1he total incame of that tax vear under Rule 1 of the Schedule.

pravisions af the Saventh Schedule shall not apply to any assets given or acquired on finance lease {or ijarah
financing} by a banking company upto tax year 2008 and recognition of income and deduction in respect of
such assel shall be dealt in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as if this
schedule has not come into force. Provided thal un-abserbed deprecialion in respect of such assets shall be
aliowed to be zet-off against the said lease rental incomsa only.

In view of Lhe aforementioned clarification, deferred tax on timing differences relating o prior years has been retained
by the bank.
Note 20049 2008
12. OTHER ASSETS Rupees in 000

Prefit £ return accrued in local currency AGD, 000 348 086
Advances, deposits and prepayments 12.1 152,732 137,187
Advanee against murabaha 160, 36E 1612147
Advance against jjarah financing 31,424 577,005
Advance taxation (payments less provision} 10107 13,480
Urrezlisad gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 5,604 -
Branch adjuslment sccount 12,908 27.456
Receivable in respecl of defined benefit plan 26 4 795 3,484
Stationery in hand 2100 1,013

__ . Bnnsv 2,720,868

121 This includes prepaid rent and prepaid insurance amounting to Rs 94.119 million (2008: Rs 102,231 milfion) and Fs

10186 million {2008: Rs 7.609 million} respectively. %_/ /ﬁ
:'\-\. II\‘_.__.-
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14.

15,

151

152

15.2

16.

16.1

17.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

There were no contihgent assets as at the balance sheet date.

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakislan
Cuiside Pakislan

18

DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

In Pakistan
Outside Pakistan

Particulars of due to financial instititions with respect to cumencies

In lacal currency
In fareign currendy

Detzils of due to fnancial institions secured / unsecured

Unsecuned

Owverdrawn nostro accounts
Wakalah borrowing

Particulars of due to financial institutions

Short-term
Learg-term

BEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Fixed deposils
Savings deposits

currenl accounts - nornsremungrative

Margin deposits

Financial Instituticns
Remunerative deposits
Non-remunerative deposils

FParticulars of deposits

In local curreney
In foreign currencies

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Mol fater than one year

Later han one year bul

not [ater than five yoars

Later than five years

20046 2008
Rupees in "000
262 691 148,403
262,681 148,403
20,000 725,000
20,000 726,000
20,000 725,000
20,000 25,000
201,000 25,000
20,000 ¥25,000
20,000 T25,000
20,000 725,000
8,088,253 5,592,089
4 B84, 440 2HMGFT
1,861,269 1,808,931
FE.571 26,651
14 810533 9,757 B9E
267,245 1,128,518
3484 5,185
270,709 1,134,704
15,081,242 10,8082 602
14,254 QBT 10,197 182
828,255 505420
15,081,242 10,802 802
2008 2008
Minimum Financial Minim um Financial
i chargas for  Principal charges Yor Frincipal

aagse _ leaga )

s future outstanding payments future outstarding
pay periods paniods
Rupees in 000

26680 3876 23704 41,298 9,358 31,900
21,529 1,776 18,753 53410 7824 45,586
48,2049 5,752 42 457 o4 708 17 222 77.A86

The bank haz entered inlo various finance lease strangements in respect of vehicles. The profit rates usel:l as the
discounting factor range betwen 13% to 22%(2008; 13% to 22%) pet arnum.
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18. OTHER LIABILITIES

Retum on deposits and bomowings:

- payable in local cumrency

- payabie in foreign currency
ACCrued expenses
Fayable to Emirates Financizl Holdings Limited
Fayable to Emirates Global Investments Limited
Payabie to Emirates intemational Haldings Limited
Payabie to Trust Securities Brokerage Limited
Reatention money
Security deposit against farah
Payabla to charity
Unrealised loss on mark to market of forward exchange contracts
Others

181 Payable to charity

Opening balance

Amount transfemed durng the year
Fayments { ufilisation during the year
Ciasing balanoce

Note 20039 2008
Rupees in "G00

313,180 140,784
668 474
FF 800 5282
12 12
1,206 1,384
2 500 2,500
435 435
3.428 3831
380,240 270510
181 £18.1.1 23.293 31,8495
- 2,787
S8 878 165,154
BG2 444 625,057
31.885 3,494
2138 28 401

{10,740 -
23.2493 31,845

1811 Acerding te the instructions of the Shanizh Advisor, any income earned by the bank from Shariah non-comptiant
avenugs shouid be donated by the tank for charitable purposes direetly by the bank,

19. SHARE CAPITAL
191 Autherisad Capital

2009 2008
Mumber of shares

1.000,000000 600,003,060 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

19.2  Issued, subscHbed and paid up capital

2009 2008
Mumber of shares
Qrdinary shares
450,000,000 450,000,000 Fully paid in cash
- ssued zg bonus shares

450,000,000 450,000, 000

fssued for consideration other than cash

20093

2008

Rupaeas in '000

10,000,000

6 000,000

18.2  The mevement in the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital dunng the year is as folows:

{Opening balance at January 1
Shares issued during the year
Closing balance at December 31

19.4  Maor sharehoiders as at Cecember 21, 2009 are as follows:
Name of shareholder
Sheikh Targ Bin Farsat Bin Khalid Al Gassemi

Mal Alkhales] Investmant LLC
Emtirates Financial Holding LLC

Mo

v el el
2009 HA5
Rupees in ‘MK
4,500,000 4,500,000
4000000 4500000
Mumber of Amount
shares Rupees In "000
450,000 000 4,500,000
250000000 4,500,000
Number of Percentage of
sharas held shamholding
157 401,500 35%
225 K] (0 20%
52 378 5 12%
B7%

_ 434 777,000

U
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19.5  Bhare Subscription Money 2009 2008
Rupees in "00D
Mai Alkhales] nvestment LLC 857 BHT
857 £57

This represents the exchange difference which arose on translation of the share subscription money recewved in
foreign currency fram Mal Al Khalesj Investment i_LLG in respect of right shares issued during the year ended December
31, 2008 This amount will be utilised in any future issue of righl shares.

Note 2004 2008
Rupees in "000
i CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
201  Transaction-related contingent liabilities
Guarantess 3,023,881 504,957
20.2 Trade-—related cantingent Habilitieg
Letters of credit 566,527 258,604
Acceptances 1949 674 B85 74¥
203 Commitments in respect of farward exchange contracts
Purchaze 2025 8532 1,303, 054
Sale 1,858 V65 628971
204 Commitments for the acquisition of operating fixed assets
Carmmitments in respect of purchase of property 281728 281,724
Commitments in respect of constructinn of new premises 2 046 -
205 Commitments for lease liability
Commitments in repect of ujrah payments under ijarah are:
- not later tan one year 19,163 -
- later than one year and not later than five years 44 532 -
- later than five years - -
653.695 -
20.6 Commitments in respeet of purchase of investments 408 732 -
1. PROFIT { RETURN EARNED ON FINANCINGS, INVESTMENTS AND
FLACEMENTS
On finanzing fo
- Customers 1,263 486 719612
- Employees 11,285 484
O investments in
- Available for saie securties 404 092 200977
On deposits with banks 12371 16,0358
On placemants against commodity murabaha 220804 18,135
On wakalah transactions 2,090 130
1814 228 1,060 378
211 This includes retum on ijarah assets under IFAS 2 as follows:
Renlal mcome on jjarah assels 138,408 -
Less: Depreciation on ijarah assels 9z {130,554} -

7,852 -
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Mote 2005 2008
Rupees in "G00
23, RETURN ON DEPDOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED
Retum on deposits and other accounts 1,164,335 530,614
Return on other short term borowings TO555 67 443
1,234,850 598,082
23 CAPITAL [LOSS) ! GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES
fLoes) f gain on sale of sukuk certificaies {3,568 1,416
Gain on sale of shares - listed 690 46
[2.878) 1462
24. OTHER INCOME
Rent on property / lackers 2,005 1,142
Recovery income 4 BR& 1,400
Financial advisory fee 130 9687 43 838
Others 7823 2,184
145450 48,655
25, ADMINIETRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other skaff benefits 472 666 338,334
Contribution to defined contribution plan 21,913 14,5349
Charge for defined benefit plan 327 16,698 14,064
Renl, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc:. 2568377 170,661
Legal and professional charges 25.1 33.273 30,271
License fee : 25 425 13,210
Communication 59,506 35 606
Brokerage and commission 18TV 48,018
Traveling and conveyance 47 A18 35,871
Repairs and maintenance 26 954 10,412
Training and development 4710 3.421
Stationery and printing 23.558 18,2569
Advertisement and publicity 111,388 68,803
Auditors' remuneration 25.2 1.450 1.242
Depreciation 102 111,382 T0EBT
Amortisation 103 30412 24,851
Security charges 37,528 14,042
Mewspaper and periodicals 2124 1,296
Financial charges on leased assels 15,481 8,140
Enterfainment 13,673 10,965
Eank charges 2378 1,138
Miscellansous expenses 14,278 7672

1,410,569 245 534

25.%  lincludes Shariah advisory fee amounling 1o Rs 3.770 million (2008: Rs 2.955 million).

2009 2008
Rupees in "004
252  Auditors' remuneration
Audit fea Td5 800
Half yearly review fee 350 250
Fee for audit of employees’ funds - -
Special certifications 300 2(H)
Cun-of-pocket expenses 55 127
1,450 _ 1,242
26, OTHER CHARGES
Fenallies imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 3,958 D65

A
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Mote 2009 2008
7. ZERPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX Rupees in ‘D00
Surplus on revaluation of avaiiable for sale secunties:
Ordinary shares - listed 55887 18,442
Related deferred tax liahility {(599) {1.844)
5,388 16,5848
28, TAXATION
For the year
Current 28.1 (11,181 -
Deferred 248 080 131,247
234 8689 131,247
For prior year
Currend . -
Deferred - -
234,869 131,247

281  This represents nminimum tax as per the requiremenis of section 113 of the income Tax Ordinance, 20071,

20049 20048
28.2 Relationship between tax expense and accourding profit Rupees in "000
Loss before taxation for the year {708 BB} {391,363
Tax at the applicabie tax rate of 35 percert {278,609; (138,570
Tax effect of differential in tax rates - -
Tax effect of permanent differences ' 1,385 10,278
Others 43,355 {d 548}

(234,860 {131.247)

29. i 055 PER SHARE

Losz after taxation for the year (564 013) {260,116}
2009 2008
MNumber of shares
VWeighted average number of ordinary shares 450} O, 00 435 116,045
Rupees
Loss per share {$.25) __ {0.60)

281 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shargs in issue as at December 31, 2008 and 2000

Maote 20089 2008
Rupees in "000
30. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 1,337 892 Q0% 378
Baiances with other banks 3 a55,078 105,124

2,296,970 1,104 512

209 2008
. STAFF STRENGTH ——r————— Numbear ——.—ueee

Permanant 5749 486
Tempaorary { on contractual basis 5 4
Consultants 9 g
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 593 459
Outsourced 274 200
Tatal Staff Strength 867 590

— T
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
General deseription

As mentioned in nole 4.9 the bank operatez funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The benefits
under the graluity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of B} or earlier cessation of servica, in lump sum.
Thie benefit iz gqual fo one month's tast drawn basic salary for each completed year of service, subject ts a mimimum
of three years of service.

Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation was carried oul as at December 31, 2009 using the “Projected Unil Credit Actuarial
Cost Methed”. The main assumptions used for actuanal valuation were as follows:

£009 2008
Per annum

- Discount rate 13% 15%
- Expected rate of increasea in salaries 13% 18%
- Expected rate of return on plan assets 13% 15%

200% 2008
Reconciliation of [receivable] / payable to defined benefit plan Rups=es in 000
Present value of defined benefit obligations 38,8202 22 857
Fair value of plan assets {46,580} (23.855)
Met actuaral {losses) f gains nat recognised 2.BB3 (2. 486)

{4,795) (3.484)
Movement in defined benefit chligation
Obligation at the beginning of the year 22 B57 8,841
Currenl service cost 17,040 12,564
Interest cost ' 3,429 B84
Past service cosl - -
Benefits paid {1,608) -
Actuarial {gain}/ loss on obligation (2.818) 3B
Obligation at ihe end of the year 38,502 __22,Bav
Mcvemnent in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at the beginning of the year 23 8B5S 10,1657
Expected retumn on plan assets 3,578 t.017
Cantribution to the scheme 18,208 14 400
Benefits paid {1.608} :
Aelvanal gain { (10ss) on plan assets 2.546 {1,720}
Fair value 3t the end of the year 45,580 23,855
Mavement in (receivable) f payable t¢ defined henefit plan
Opening batance {3.4B4} (3,148}
Charge for the year 16,808 14 064
Bank's contribulion to the fund made during the year {18,209} {14 400}
Closing balance {4.795} {3,484}
Charge for defined benefit plan
Currenl service cost 17,040 12.5094
Interesl cost 3424 284
Expected retum on plan assets (3.678) (1.017)
Past zervice cost - 1,603
Net actuarial {gain) { loss recognised 7 -
16,655 14,064

Actual return on plan assets
Expecled retumn on plan assets 3.578

Actuarial gain / {loss) an plan assets 2,546
6,124
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Historical informatiom 2009 2008 a7
——————Rupees in ‘000 —-nummnnnen
Defined benefit obligation 38,902 22,857 8.641
Fair value of plan assets 46,580 23.855 10,167
Surpius / (deficit) {7,678} {988] {1,226)
Expenence adjustments on plan Labilities 2816 (538) {157}
Experience adjustments on plan assets 2515 (1,728 (B2)
2009 % 2008 Yo
Components of plan assets as a percentage Rupses in 000 Rupees in '000
of total plan assets
Fakistan Investment Bands 38,007 B4 - 0%
EBank balances 7,973 16% 23 855 100%

45,580 23,855

Based_on the recommendalion of the actuary the bank intends to charge an amount of Rs 17.718 million in the
financial staternants for the year ending December 31, 2008,

CEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The bank alsc operates a recognised contributory provident fumd for all permanent employees. Equal monlhly
contributions are made, both by the bank and Lhe employees, to the fund at a rate of 10 percent of hasic salary,

2009 2008
Rupees jn "000
Contribution from the bank 21,913 14 539
Contrbution from the employee . 21,913 14,5359
. 41826 28073
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Frasident f Chiet Executive Directors Executives
Futlil] 2008 2005 200Aa 2009 2008
Rupees in 000

Menagerial remuharation 20277 13,242 - . 131,233 TH418
Charge for defined banefit plan 1,690 1.457 9,132 €627
Contribution to defined

coninbution plan 2.0z8 1,748 - - 10,495 6962
Rant and hoyse maintenance 6,083 34973 - - 35427 238555
Litilities allawance 2028 1.324 - - 11,5804 T.952
Medical allowarce 2028 1,324 - . 11,80 7.1
BHIUE - 1,457 - - 0438 17,880
Conveyance - 461 - - A45 14,569
CHhers - - 2662 - 1.558 -

34,134 24 S8k 2662 - 221_,34? 165,114
Mumber of persons 1 1 & 5] 127 110
———

I addilion to the abowe, the bank also provides cars to executives for Lheir own use.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchangad, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties irt an aren's kength transaction.

The fair value of traded investmeants is based on quoted markel prices, except for tradable securities classified by the
tank zs ‘held to malurity’. These securities are caried at amertised cost in order o comptly with the requirements of
B3D Circular Mo 14 dated September 24, 2004,

Fair value of unquoted equity investmenis is determined on the basis of break up value of these invesiments as per
the tatest available sudited financial statemenis.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabililies and fixed term degosits cannot be caloulated with sufficient
reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assels and liabilities and reliable data regarding
market rates for similar inslruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has bean cakulated jn
accordance with the Bank's accounting policy as stated in note 4.3 to these financial statements. %

_,--"’ -
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The rapricing profile, effzctive rates and maturity are stated in note 40.4 to these financial statements.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly
different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nabure or in the case of

customer leans and deposits are frequenlly repriced,

35.2 OF - balance sheet financial instruments

2009 2008
Book value Fairvalue Book value Fair value
Rupees in "000
Farviard purchaze of foreign exchange 2,025 532 2023 538 1,203,054 1,241 ,EiEI_E
Forward agreement for Domowing - - - .
Forward sale of forgign exchange 1,998,765 1,580,867 628,971 820,608

Farward agreement for tending

3k, SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

For the year ended Dacambar 31, 2008

Corporate Trading & Retait Commercial
Financa Sales Banking Banking
Rupsas in "0:00
Trtal incorme 130,968 737,523 95,710 1,250 862
Total expenzas 6911 110,454 1,251, 266 1,646 324
Net income § {loss) 124 057 627,059 {1,154 558) (395,442
Segment relurn on assets (ROA} (%) 36.03% 14.41% 16.75% 11.97%
Segment cost of funds (%) 0.00% 7.82% 7.51% 10.38%
Az at Dacember 31, 2009
Corporate Trading & Ratatl Commarcial
Finance Sales Banking Banking
Rupees in 000
Segrent assets {gross of provisions} 344 353 6029 273 2415579 11,340 863
Sagrnett nen performing loans (NP - - FO.750 1,124,156
_Bagment provision requined aganst NPL - - 23.451 287 518
Segment ligbilitiss 1.83% 2B 522 5.686,673 10,551,602

For the year endad Decamber 31, 2008

Corporate Trading & Retail Commarcial
Finance Sales Banking Banking
Rupsres in '000
Total incorme 431839 340,960 72814 687 874
Total expenses 9,575 45,897 752,566 688,812
Mat income ¢ (loss) 34,264 245 063 (672.752) 4,052
Segment refurn oo assets (ROA) (96} 4 B6% 4. 11% 14 73% 15.08%
Segment cost of funds (%) 0% 8.16% 6.42% 19.24%
As at December 31, 2008
Corporate Frading & Retail Commarciat
Finange Balas Banking Banking
Rupees in ‘(00
Segmenl assets (gross of pravisions) 35,292 3,517.796 2,018, 954 10,988 237
Segment non performing lans (MPL} - - 3100 10437
Segmenl provision required against NPL - - 7r5 10.406
Segment fiabilitios 2 658 752 974 4 354 360 7358 556

3. TRUST ACTIVITIES

The bank is not engaged in any significant frusi aclivities. However, the bank acts as security agerd for some of the
sukuk issues and Syndicate islamic Structured Finances that the bank had arranged and / or dislributes on behalf of

its customers.
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The bank has related party relationship with its associated undertaking {refer note 8.4}, emplovee benefit plan {refar
note 323 and its directors and key management personnel.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and rezponsibility for planning, directing and

controfling the acliviies of the bank.

Contributions to and accruals in respact of staff ratirement benefil plan are made in accordance with the actuarial
valuations / terms of the conlribution plan {refer nate 32 o these financial statements for the details of the plan).

Remuneration to the executives, disclosed in note 34 to these financial statements 2re delermined in accordance

wakh the lerms of their appointment.

Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in

these financral stataments, are as follows:

Subscription money

Al danirary 1,

Regeived dunng the year
Refurd during the year
Allotmant of shares

At December 31,

Financings

At Jangary 1,
Bisbursed during year
Repaid during the yaar
At Decembear 31,

Ceposits

At Januany 1,
Disbursed during year
Fepaid durng the year
At Oecember 31,

Other payable

Al January 1,
Chsbursed ouring yesas
Repaid during the year
At December 31,

Othar Balances

Frafit racaivalde on financing

invastments

Frovisian for diminution in valoa of

iNVEEUTIENE
Reaturn payskle on deposit

Transactions, income and expensas

Profit earned on financing

Return on deposits expensas

Salares and allowances

Contribulion to defined contribution plan
Cantribulion for dafined beneft plan

Mo

Key management

Total Tates parsannal
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Rupesz in "DAOC-
657 1,007 855 g3y 9594 755 v 13,100
- 492 802 - AYZ 502 - -
- {1,500, 500y - {1.48& 300} - 13,100}
BS7 857 G5 €37 - -
12B.446 107 587 14,188 4259 114,248 T8 328
24,915 58,984 1,628 0,568 23.287 b0.633
{44,647} {38.126) 2,981} (4,028 {41.656) (34,713
108,714 128 445 12.845 14,198 95,865 114 248
123,136 72328 93,837 21,13 29,299 2187
1.315.028 BEE.RGT 1,169, 586 616,367 145,442 252,290
{1.152.251) (B17.849)  {1.037.737 (573.661) [154 514} {244,188}
245813 123,136 225626 B3 837 20,227 25293
4,335 32420 4,315 32 420 - -
3 FVE 4,632 3,776 4 632 - -
{3.254) {32,717} {3.254) (32,717 - -
4,857 4,335 4,857 4,335 - -
7.465 M3 2 6895 110 4, 7EG 233
52200 52,200 92 200 &2 200 - -
1,649 12,428 21649 12,428 - -
216 1.409 9% 1,346 2,621 63
5,762 4,291 261 1,957 &,80H 2,334
12,708 3812 620 3352 12,088 450
86 162 75502 - - 55,162 75,502
219713 14,538 - - 215913 14 B35
18,205 14,400 - - 18,208 14,400
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M. CAPITAL ADEQUACY
331 Cagital Management

The objective of managing capilal is to safeguard the bank's ability 10 conlinue a5 a going concem, so hal it could
centinue 1o provide adeguate retums fo shareholders by pricing products and servicas commansurately with the level
of niek. It is the policy of the bank lo mainlain & slrong capitsl bese so as o maintain investor, creditor and market
canfidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the fevel of capital on sharshokders’
return i= also recognised aad the bank recognises the need I maintain a bafance between the higher refums that
might be possible with gréater aeaning and the advantages and securly aftordad by a sound capital position.

Goals of managing capital

The yoals of managing capital of the bank are as follows:

- To be an appraprialely capilalized inslitution, as defined by reguiatary aulhorities and comparable to the peers;
- Maintain strong ratings and to protect the bank against unaxpacled evants;

- Availability of adequale capital at a reasonable cosl 50 as to apatde the bank to expand; and acteeve low overall
cost of capital with appropriate mix of capital elements.

Statutory minimum capital requirement and management of capital

The State Bank of Pakistan threugh its B350 Gircutar Ne. 7 daed April 15, 2008 requires the minimum paid up capital
{net of losses) for Banks / Development Finance Institubons to be mised to Rs 10 hillign by the year ending December
31. 2013, The raise is to ba achieved in 2 phased manner requiring Rs 6 bilion paid up capital (net of Jusses) by the
end of the financial year 2009. The Sank’s paid-up capital as at Decamber 31, 2008 amounied to Rs 4.5 bilion whilz it
accumulatad lesses aggregated to s 1.012 billien {including Rs 0.554 bilion incurrad during the current year.
Congequently the net equity of the bank ag al Desember 31, 2009 has deplaled to Re 3 488 hillipn.

In this connection, the bank has applied to he Stale Bank of Pakislan 1o grant the bank an extension upto March 31,
2010 for meeting the capital requirement {net of accumulated kosses) of Rs 6 bilken. The management of the bank is
confident that the Capital requirement wilt be mel Thmough memger with another banking company. Tha bank is currently
in the process of conducting due diligence of certain banking companies for their proposed mernger with the bank,

Bank's ragulatary capital analyzed into twao tiers

Tier 1 capital, includas fully pawd up capital (inchuding bonus shares), balance in share premium account, ganerai
reserves as per the financial statements and nel un-approprialed profits, etc after daductions for investmenlts in the
equity of subsidiaries engaged in banking and fmancial activites and deficit on revaluation of available for sale
investments.

Tier 2 capital. includes general provisions for loan losses (upto a8 maximum af 1 25 parcent nsk waighted assets).
resarvas on the revaluation of fixed assats and equily imsesiments (up to a maximum of 45 percent of tha balance in
the: related revatuation reserves), foreign exchange franslation reserves, alc

The Capital of tha Bank is managed keeping in view the minimum “Capits! Adequacy Ratio” raquired by SBF through
B5D Circutar Ne. 7 daded April 15, 2008, The adequacy of the capital is tesled with refersnce 1o the rsk-weighted
az5ats of the Bank.

The required capital adequacy ratio {10 parcent of Ihe risk-weighted zssets) & achioved by the bank through
improvement it the asset quality at the existing volume level, ensuring balter resowvery management and striking
templomise proposal and seltement and compasition of assal mix with low nsk. Banking operations are calegorised
as wither rading book or banking book and risk-weighted assets are detarminad acoording to specihed requirements of
the Slate Bank of Pakistan thal seek 1o reflect the varying levels of risk attached lo assels and ofi-balanca shest
exposures. Tha toral risk-weighled exposures comprise the credil nsk and market risk.

The calculation of Capital Adequacy enabies the Bank 1o assess the long-term soundnass. As the bank carries on the
tusiness on a wide area nmetwork basis, it is critical that it 15 abla ta continuously monitar the exposure across B enline
organisation and aggregate the fisks so as o lake an integrated approach / view. The Bank has complied with all
externally imposed capital requirements through oul the pepcd. Further, there has been no matenal changa in the
Bank's management of capitat during the period.
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Capital adequacy ratio

The: capital to risk weighted assels ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's guidelines on
capital adequacy using Baset 2 standardised approzch is presenied below,

Regulatory capital base

Tiaer | capital
Share capital
Share subscription money
Reserves
Accumlated loss

Less: Goodwill, investmaent in commercial entities (50%)etc.

Caleulation difference {expected losses vs aligible provisions)

Total Tier | Capita?

Tier It Capital
Subordinated Debl {upta 50% of total Tier 1 Capital)

General provisions subject to 1_25% of tota! risk weighled assets

Revaluation reserve (upto 45%}

Less: Caleulation difference (expected losses vs eligible provisions)

Invesiment in commercial entities {50%)*
Total Tier Il capital

Eligible Tier I} capitat

Total regulatory capital

Risk-weighted exposures

Credit risk

Portfofios subject to standardizad approach
{Simple Approach)

On-Balance Sheet ltems:
Soversign and Central Banks
Public Sector Entiies [PSESs)
Banks and Secunties Fims
Corparates Portfolio

Relail Non Mortgages
Mortpages - Residantial
Securitized Assets

Equibies

Unlisted

Fixed Asszets

Olher Azsats

Past Due Exposures

Qff hatance sheet iterns:
Non-Market Related:

Direct credit substitiules
Ferformance-related contingencies
Trade-related contingencies

208

2008

{Rupeeas in '000}

4,500,000 4,500,000

657 G457
{1.012.429) (448 418}

44 BT 51,106

3,443,541 4,001,135

v.582 0,134

2,654 £,2499

10,275 17,433

(a} 3453 517 4,018,568

2009 ) 2008
Capital Rizk adjus- Capital Rfsk adjus-
Requirement  ted value Requiremont  ted value

~—--— Rupeas in "0H}

208
13,774
17,730

554 ¥75%
2332
17,252

8,501
3,666
135,762
106,224
43237

40,564

6.284

Lending of securities or posting of securities as collateral

Other commitments

o

2,604
172174
221,622

£.934 684
29,145
215852

103,768
45 826
1.697.027
1327706
565,462

632,048

78,551

4281
3,530
605,321
5,432
15,924

4,773
125,434
61,605
1,288

38,106

46873

- Rupees in 000 -———

3217
44 240
8.728.012
117.8585
248 052

59,658
1.567 923
770,082
18,220

476,321

58418
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Risk-weighted exposures Note 2009 20048
Capital Risk adjus- Capital Risi adjus-
Requitement  ted value  Regquirement fed walus
Market related: Rupees in "HH s —eeem Rupees in " o

Cutstanding Interest rate contracts - - .
Culstanding Foraign Exchange Contracts 1.202 15,019 543 ¥.2es

FPartfalios subyjed to |ntemal Fating Based
IRE ro@

2.q. Corparate, A,
Soveraigh |
Retail ,
Securitization otc.

Equity Expogure Risk in tha Banking Book

Eguity portfolic subject 1o market-baged
approaches
Under simpie risk weight method NrA

Under Intermal models approach

Equity portfclio subject ta PD fLGD

Markat Risk

Capital Reguirement for porfclics subject to
n i reach
Intarest rato risk 765 8,563 488 6, 100
Equilty position risk _ - -
Foreign Exchange Risk 256543 320,535 15,159 160 488
Position in Oplicns -

Capital Requirarmen lios subject to
Internal Models Approach
nterest rate risk N/A
Foreign exchange risk etc,

Operational Risk

Capital Beguirement for operationai risks 92,710 1.158.875 63,055 T4 450

TOEAL {b) 1.082.428 13,530,354 1,061,572 13,144 538

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Tola! etigible regutatory capital held {a} 3453 817 4,018 568
Total Risk Weighied Assets {43) 13,530,354 13,144 638
Capital Adequacy Ratio (a /b 25.53% 5T

The amount of cash marging, deposils and lisn on deposits held against guaranless, performance bonds,
acceptances and standby letter of credit aggregating Rs. 2,621 4598 {2008: Rs 38335 million) millicn has been
deducterd.

RISK MANAGEMENT

This section prezents information about EGIBL's exposure ko and its managemend and conirol of risks, in particular
the primary risks associated wilh its use of financial insirumenis:

- Credil rizk is the risk of loss resulling from client or counterparty defaull. - ﬂ
-~

- Marke! rizk is exposure 10 markel variables such as interest rates, exchange rates and equity indices. .

A
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- Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to the bank arising from either its inability lo meel its obligations or Lo fund
increases in azsets as they fall due without incuming an vnacceptable cost,

- Cperational rigk is 1he risk of loss resulting from inadeguale or failed intemal processes, pepple and system or
from extemnal events.

Represaniations of rigk are for 2 given pericd and EGIBL's risk managemend will constantly evolve as ils business
activilies change in responss 1o credit, macked, product and other developrments. The bank rmanagas the nsk through
a framework of risk management, policies and principles, organisational structures, and risk measurement and
monitering processes that are closely aligned with the business activities of the bank.

Risk managemeant principles

- The board of directors (the Board) provides sverall risk managemend supervision. The Board Tisk management
comimittee regulary moniors the bank's risk profile.

- The bank has set up cbjectives and policies 10 manage the risks that arise in connection with the bank's
activities. The nsk management framework and policies of the bank are guided by specific objectives to ensure
that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate the salient risk
elements in the operations of the hank.

- The establishment of the overali financial risk management objectives is consistent and tandem with the
straleqy to create ahd enhance sharsholdars value, whilst guided by a prudent and robust framework of risk
management policies.

- The structure of risk management function s closely aligned with the orgamsational structure of the bank.

Rizsk management arganisation

The Board of Directors through its sub-committee ¢alled 'Board Risk Management Committee’ {BRME) oversees the
overall risk of the bank. The Risk KManagement Department (RMO} is Ihe organisational amm performing the functions
of idertifyirg, measuring, monitoring and cordrolling the vanous nsk and assists the apex level committes and the
varmus sub-commitiees in conversion of policies inlo aclion.

The BEMC comprises of thtee non executive direclars and the Chief Risk Officer. One of the non exgcutive directors
of Ihe bank chairs the risk management commiltes, which is responsible for planning, management and control of
the aforermentioned risks of the bank.

The BRME has delegated some of its tasks of risk management to sub committeses which are as follows.!

Name of the committee Chaired by
Credit committes Presidenl & CED
Asset and lkability management comemitlee (ALCO) Presidenl & CED
Audit commitiee Mon executive dirsctor

Credit committes is responsible for approving and monitoring all financing transactions and afso the overall quality of
the financing portfolo. Far this purpose # has formulated credit policy =20 3s to effectively monitor the risk profile of
the bank's asset portfolic and to ensure sliict adherence to the State Bank of Pakistan's Prudential Regulations.
Banking Companies Qrdinanse, 1962 and any other reguiatory requirement.

Agset and Liability Committee (ALCT) has the responsibility for Lhe farmulation of averall strateqy and oversight of
the assels lability maragement function. ALCO monitors the maintenance of balance sheet liquidity rafios,
depositors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of retiance on large individual deposits.
The Board of Directars have approved a comprehensive liquidity management policy.

The Board has constituted an audil committee. The audit commitlee warks ta ensure that the best practices af the
coda of corparate govermance and other policies and procedures are being complied with.

The bank's Ask management, compliance and internal audil and legal depantments support the Ask management
function. The role of the risk management depadment is to guantify the sk and the quality and integrity of the bank's
nzk-related data. The compliance department ensures Lhat all the directives and guidelines issued by State Bank of
FPakistan (SBP) are being complied with in order 1o mitigate the compliance and operational risks. Internal audil
department reviews the compliance of indlemal contral progedures with intemal and regulatory standards.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to EGIBL as a result of failure by a clienl or counterparty to mest its contractual
obligations when due. Exposure to credi risks for the bank arises pimarily from lending activities.

The management of credit risk is gowverned by credit policies approved by the Board. The procedures set out the
relevanl approval aothorbes, fmit, nsks, credit ratings and other matters involved in order to ensure sound credil
granting standards. -
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The bank has a well defined credit structure duly approved by the Board under which delegated authorities at
various fevels are operating and which criticably scrutinise and sanction credit. The emphasis is to provide shod to
medium temm frade related financings 1o reputable names, which are self liguidating and Sharah compliant. The
risk appraisal sysiem of the bank has enabled it to build a sound portfalic,

The Board of Directors has approved the Intemal Credit Risk Rating Policy for customers, establishing a rating
mechanism for identifying and measuring the credit risk against each obligor / transaction. The mechanism
considers faclors such as management, financial health and macro / micre economic factors and the facility
struciuring. The Intemal Credil Risk Rating System which has been implemented in the bank assigns risk grades lo
credit portfolio in nine categories whereas three grades have been assigned o classified loans. The system has
slarted playing 2 significanl role in the decision making, moniloring and capital adequacy processes relating to
credit risk management.

The bank classifies a claim as impaired i it considers it likely that il will suffer a foes on that claim as a result of the
cbligor's inability 1o mest ds commitments (including profit payments, principal repayments or other payments due)
after realisation of any available collateral. Allowances or provisions are determined in accordance with the
requirements of the SBP. The autharity to establish allowances, provisions and credit valuation adiustmends for
impaired claims, is vested in Credit Operations Department and is according to the SBP regulations. Delails are
given in note © to these financial slaternenis.

40.1.1  Segmental information

40.1.1.1 Segments by class of business 23
Cortirngencies and

Financing (Gross} Deposlis Commitments
Rupees in 000 Percent Rupees in 000 Parcent Rupees in )0 Percent

Agiitulture, forestry, hunting and fighing - 0. 0Hyeh 1304 935 A.65% - 0. %%
WIfiings A quamying 156 957 161 =8.811 1.30% 753568 0.8 7%
Tizilibe B4l A E T0%; 52985 [ 35% B2 TED 1. 86%
Chamical and phamacewticals 0,230 B 10% 24 254 0.16% 116441 1. 3d%
Ml midusginies 110.754 113% 1,351 0.01% 18637 0.29%
Frirdirsg and stationery 30 o0 30T o489 0GB % - 0.40%
Manulacturing F70.3a4 7B 145216 0550 asemT 4. 074,
Camen - 0.0 285 11000 f.500 a{3%
Sugar 966, A7 990 40,267 027 - .00
Footwear and legther garments g 0.0 Y762 017% B 000,
Automobile erd fransporialon sgquiprient - 0.0 - O i - 0.00%
Electanica and elecincal apgliances - 0.00% 5.2 0 % - 0.00%,
Construgtion 1,597 77 18.37% 264 M1 175% Sy AT B.88%
Power [Elecincty), gas, water, zanitary 744 626 FEA% 1447 0% 2.017.872 30.23%
Whotesale and rataif Irsde 1.204 (46 12.34% 107 2548 0.7 1% - .00
Ezports ( imparis 251,208 2.57% 298173 1.986% 20B8.525 241%
Transpar, starage ard comemunication 122,743 1. 26% 107,104 0.7T1% ER. U5 0.7%%
Financial 219.047 i 1 270,700 1.80% 4 522,028 52.22%
Ingurarse - 0 B1% - 0.008 - 0.00%
BEiveas 32,447 r.33% 1,482 257 . B30 7485 .08%
Individuzals 101,017 1 D3% 5,308 808 315.80% - G.00%.
at A6E 913 176% - Q008 - .05
Orhers 1,176,517 12 DF% T84 16 A6.43% 7 a0 0.GEY
B.760,212 1 {1k D1 o 15081242 100. 0% &,6E60,585 1000054
i) ]
. . . Contigencies and
Financing [Groas) Depasits COommitments
Rupees in 000 Percemnt Rupeos in '000  Percent Rupees in 008 Percent

Agneytture, 1oepzley, Yurting and fishing - 4 oot Ti2,01% B.54% - 0 00%
Miring ared quarrying 218,338 2 BT 332 885 3.05% 170,800 597%
Teie B45 190 10 B6% 188,555 1.82% 82,773 228%
Chemical ard pharmaceulicals 750 et q73% B¥ 425 D.53% a7 aav 319%
Medal industries &b 134 103% 1,842 G.a7% 18,810 0813
Friring and statkanery 30 oo 3 5% 120437 1.11% - 0L0%
Tanulfaciering U7 4L 0 24%, 5O ETH I 55% 182 042 b 26%
Cemant - 0.00%, 845 o 01% 2,500 .06,
Sugar JE rar A O7% 41,57 0 38% - 0 0
Fociwaar and leather garmentis - 0.00% = 3rd-1-] R al=L"N - 0 ams
Autamobdle and Iranspartation equipiment - 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00%
Elactranics and edectrical appliancas - 0.00% 44 399 0.41% - 0 00%
Consinicicn 1.279,774 16.43% T AT TAF% 30 546 1 28%
Power [glectricityl, gag, water, sanilzny 5,385 0.07% - 0.00% - 0004
Wholesale ard retall tracs 131,834 1.69%, 53,390 1.60%. - Q 004,
Exports | impons 787,350 10 118, 120972 1.14% 2294 0115,
Tramsport, storags and cormmundcation 288 821 371 R4 37E A 530 11,400 0. 38%
Financiz| A60, 361 Lol 134,704 LU Pl 1.932.025 B3.05%
Ingurance: - 0.80% - LRl 4 - 0.00%
Sernces 453 908 5.83% 3,197 A5G 29. 36% 75,785 2d7%
Indlyidwals 19,082 5.566% 1 506 T2 14.868% - O 1%
SlaR 270 836 3.47% 1,048 248 5.6 - 0.00%
Others 272 4TH 3.52% S84 D80 B.07% 481 723 15.75%

!; 7. 788,654 100.00% 10,892 602 1 (0. K% 3,054 151 100 Do



a2

40.1.1.2 Segment by sector

2009
. . Contingencies and
F
inancing Deposits commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupsas Percent
in '0D0 in "000 in "0G0
Public f government 1,166,700 11.95% 1,952,219 12 94% - 0.60%
Private 5,593,512 £8.05% 13.12%.0235 a7.06% 8660685 100.00%
3,760,212 100 .00% 15081242 100.00% 8 660 B85 100.00%
2008
. - Cantingencies and
F
mancing Deposits commitments
Rupees Percert Rupees Percent Rupees Parcent
in '000 in "(x} in 000
FPublic f governmenl - 0.00% 21715682 19.94% - 0.00%
Private 7.788 B84 100, 00 8,721,040 80 DE% 3,064,151 100.00%
7,788,664 100 .00% 10,852 602 100.00% 3.064, 151 100 00%

40.1.1.3 Details of nan-perferming financing and specific provisions by class of business segment

Agriculture, forestry, hurding and fishing
Wining and gquarrying

Chermical & pharmaceuticals

Cerment

Texdile

Sugar

Footwear & laather garments
Aulamobile & transporation equipment
Ekectronics and elechrical appliances
Construction

Wholesale / retail trade

Exports fimports

Transport, storage and communication
Financial

Insurance

Services

Individuals

Olhers

2009 2008
Classified Specific Clagsgified  Specific
Financing Provisions Financing Provisions

Held Held
{Rupees in "000)

109,574 26,149 - .

168,591 133.088 - -

242 602 39,651 - -

114 864 22.9M - -
43,568 16,0068 3,100 775
V9,798 23 450 10,437 1,272

454 887 52,150 - -
1,213,954 313 387 13,537 2047

40.1.1.4 Details of non-performing financings and specific provisions by class of business segment and sector

Public f government
Private

Wi

2009 2008
Classified  Specific Clazzified  Specific
Financing Provisions Financing Pravisions

Held Held
-{Rupees in '000)
1,213,994 313,387 13,537 2,047
1213994 313,387 13,637 2,047

o

¥



4.1.1.5 Geographical segment analysis

40.2

Pakistan
Cithers

Pakistan
Dthers

33

2009
F"’ﬂb;x“] Total assets Mot assats c;:ﬁ’;ﬁ“'
taxation employed employed Commit-
Rupees in 000
(758,882) 19,762,450 3403 616 8,660,685
(798 883 19,762,450 3.493 616 8.660 685
2008
hﬂ:i;ml Total assets Het assats E;r;zn:: dn-
taxation employad ampicyed Commit-
R upess in 000
(391,353) 16,537,387 4,068,839 3.064 151
391 .363! 16,537 347 4 068,838 3,064,151

Credit Risk — General Disciosures, Basel If Specific

The bank haz adopted Standardised Approach, under Basel |l Accarding to the regulatory statemend submitted
under the Standardised Approach, the financing portfolic has been divided irto claims on corporale and claims
categorised as refail podfolig. Claims on corporate constitute 99.58% of the lotal financing exposure and the
remaining 0.42% exposure pertains to claims categonsed as retail porticlio.

Cradit Risk: Standardized Approach

Currently the hank does not have any policy whereby customers have to be rated by a rating agency. Therefore,
the bank uses unsalicited / solicited ratings of JCR-VIS, PACRA and other foreign agencies wherever applicable.

Faollowing are the types of exposure for which each agency is used:

Exposure Maody's SEP JCR-VIS PACRA Fitch
Corporate - "y v y -
Banks - v * . "y ¥
Savereigns - _ _ _
SME's - - . - _

Securitisations

Most of the bank's asset base is short or medium term. Therefore, the bank uses the entity's raling 1o assess the
rigk of our exposure without any adjustments.

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardised approach, amount of bank's { DFFs
sutstandings (rated and unarated ) in each nsk bucket as well as thase that are deducted are as follows:

Exposure Rating Amount gJ Deduction | [\ ot
category outstandin CRM"

Rupees in 000 — -
Corporate 14 2084 722 708 401 1,386,321
Banks 1-4 445 028 ' 445 (126
Soverigns 1 893512 - #3512
Fublic sectar entities 2.3 Jdd 348 - Jd4 348
Urnrated (plhers) unraled 13,932 657 2,328 571 11,604 086
Teal 16,911,267 3,036,972 13,874 295

* CRM= Credit Risk Mitigalion

Main types of collateral 1aken by the bank are:

- Cash margin

- Lign on depeosits f government securilies

- Hypothecation on stocks / assets
- Mortgage on properties




s
Eligible financial collaterat and other eligible collateral after the application of haircuts.

The bank has adopted simple approach to credit risk miligation under Basel I} and therefore has not applied any
hairculs to the collaleral, Moreover the bank's eligible collateral enly includes cash / liquid securities.

404 fMarket risk
40.4.1 Markel risk is the risk thal the bank's eamings or capital, or #s ability to meet business objectives. will be adversaly
affected by changes in the level or volatlity of markel rates or prices such as interest rates, eredit spreads,

commodity prices, equily prices and foreign exchange rates. In the absence of frading bock, the bank is only
expased to benchmark rate risk in lhe banking book.

The main cbjective of the bank’s market risk management is to minimise market nisk in the banking book and to
facilitate business growlh within 2 contralied and transparend risk rmanagemant framework.

Market risk in banking book arise from investment in fived income secuwribies, equities and dealing in foreign
exchange transactions.

Market risk is being monitored by Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), comprising of CEQ, CFO, CRO and senior
exacutives. The commitiee performs following functions in relation to market rsk:

- Regular periodic review of market risk, based on economic review reports, interest sensitive gap reports and
simulated incarne reports 2lc

- Keeps an eye on the struclure / composdion of hank's assets and liabiliies and decide upon product pricing for
deposits and advances.

- Cievetop future business sirategy in view of the latesl trends in interest rate in the market, economic conditions
and local regulatory requirements.

- Feview and recommend o the Board of Diirectars, new oppariunities for generating revenues.

40.4.2 Forelgn Exchange Risk

2009 2008
Het Fareign Het farzign
Ot-halance i Di-balance
Asgets Liahikies sheet CUrTENCY Aruais Liabilities sheettems  CUTEMEY
BXPOUE BUPOE LiTE
Rupset in T
Pakslan nipes 18647122 1H A4 40 126,767} 3176 445 16 3B7E2 41772634 [E74,GE4] 382 Ded
LImed Siates dollar 97 462 5811 (93,574} 232 356 34430 412 264 d7F 186 159 349
(Great Britas pound AR T48 ,11F kA [1.981) 21 364 56532 HATE (3,584
Euro 102,576 154 837 170 358 68,087 40,552 134127 w21 G4&
RED b, 448 45 838 - 16,612 222480 32971 71,005 IFE
JBY BT - - &7

19,72 450 16,268,334 - _ +493 5168 16,537,387 12 468,544 - 4. 068,834

Foreign exchange risk arises fram the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to the changes in
foreign exchange rates, The bank manages this risk by setling and monitoring dealer, currency, inter exposures, stap
loss and counter parly limits for an and off balance sheel inancial mstruments.

The exposures of the bank fo foreign exchange nsk is zlso restricted by the statulory imit on aggregate exposure
prescrbed by the Slate Bank of Pakistan.

40.4.3 Equity position risk

Equity posilion risk is the risk arising from laking positions in the equities and ail instruments that have a market
bekaviour similar to equities.

Counler parties limits, as aiso fixed by the State Bank of Pakigtan, are considered 1o limit risk concentration. The
bank invests in those equities which are Sharah compliand as advised by the Shariab adviser.
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41. DATE OF AUTRCRISATION
These financial statements were authonzed for issue onMowdh 83,360 by |he Board of Directors of the bank.
42, GENERAL
421 Comparatives

Comparative information has been re-classified, re-amanged or addittonally incorporated in these financial
staternents. Signifcant reclassifications f re-arrangements of the comesponding figures include:

- Advance against murabaha amounfing fo Rs 1,612 miflion has been classified under 'other assets’. Praviously it
was shown under ‘financing’,

- Advanee against ijarah amounting to Rs 573 million has been classified under ‘other assels'. Previously il was
shown under ‘financing'.

4 42.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

/ %
(/Mﬁeﬁ { Chiel Exacutive Birector irector Director




